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Excellance in Animal Haalth

Our Values
* Service to our customers is our primary duty and the most vital compenent to our success.

+ People are our most important resource. Investing in training and development, and expanding one's opaortunities, while
ireating all people with dignity and respect, is the cornerstone of our arganization.

* Honesty and integrity in both our words and actions are central to building and keeping trust.
* We work as cne, embrace responsibility and maintain a focused effort. Both our successes and setbacks are shared by all.
* Innovation, creativity and willingness to take risks foster our continuous improvement.

Citizenship to our communities, industry and our company requires us to respect our resources, giving mor than we take.

Our Vision
* To become the teading provider of animal health products and services to our customers in the food arimal and companion

animal markets.

Our Mission
= To provide our customers with quality products and innovative services.

« To achieve cost-to-serve competitive advantage through the utilization of technology, process improverr ent and scale.

* To develop long-term strategic relationships with select manufacturers, while growing our proprietary-b-anc products where
appropriate.
* To build cur company through the efficient utilization of capital resources, while providing superior shareholder returns,

Company Transformation

Charlesbank Capital Organ ¢ Growth
Bain Capital Inc. acquires Partners & Management Proprictary Products
Founded in 1954 by company and establishes | acguire company from Completed Initial Public Operaticnal Efficiencies
Willard Wall family new management team Bain Capital Offering Selective Acquisitions

19541997 1997-2005 20062007

1& acquisitions between Two major acquisitions One companion and

1985 and 1957 between 1997 and 2002 5 production animal
distributors acquired

QOur Strategy for Future Growth Is Outlined Below.
Continue to grow our business organically. We intend to significantly increase our share of animal health product purchases by
optimizing our sales efforts and expanding our consultative services.

Expand sales of proprietary products. We believe that the quality of our proprietary branded products in conjunction with cur
competitive pricing strategy has generated a loyat customer base that is confident in our branded products. *Me selectively target
product areas to expand our proprietary branded products portfolio while maintaining our strategic manufactu-er relationships.

Cantinue to improve operational efficiencies. We have made significant investrents in our distributian infrastructure and informa-
tion technology platform over the past several years.

Make selective acquisitions. We actively screen, target, contact and evaluate potential acquisitions. Qur acquisition strategy is to
target complementary businesses in the animal health product market that provide, among other things, access to additional
product lines, sales representatives, customer opportunities, manufacturer relationships, sates territories and value-added services
bath in the United States and internationally.




Corporate Profile

AHIl is a leading distributor of animal health products in the
United States. We sell more than 40,000 products sourced
from over |,.500 manufacturers to over 65,000 customers,
as well as provide consultative services 1o our customers in
the highiy fragmented animal health products industry.
Products we aistribute include pharmaceuticals, vaccines,
parasiticides, diagnostics, capital equipment, sanitizers, devices
and supplies. QOur principal customers are veterinarians,
production animal operators and animal heaith product
retailers. We believe our customers purchase from us due
to our longstanding relationships with them, knowledge of
their businesses, service and ability to assist them in their
operations. In addition to providing a broad selection of
animal health products, we offer our customers a compre-
hensive set of consultative services, software and equipment
that differentiates us from our competition and further
solidifies what we believe is our leading market position. We
process daily shipments from our central replenishment and
distribution facility in Memphis, Tennessee and over 70
distribution locations strategically located in the United States,
Canada and Taiwan. Our corporate headquarters is located

in the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area.

Industry Segment Breakdown
(distributor sales)*

Beef 29%
Canine 24%

Feline 16%

Dairy 15%

it Equine 4%
LN / Other 2%
AY / Poultry 3%
o—\\ pd Swine 7%

2006 Industsry Sales = $5.6 billion.
AHI Customer Mix
(FY 2007 sales=$629.5 million)

Vet 26%
Retail 3%

Catalog 2%
Dealer 15%
Producer 54%

54% of product 15 sold
directly te producers.

AHI Product Mix
{FY 2007 sales=$629.5 million)

Anthelmintics 9%
Other 14%
Equipment 10%

Antibiotics 27%
Insecticides 4%

Pharmaceuticals 20%

Biologicals |16%

Pharmaceutical, biologicals
and antibiotics make up
63% of product sales.

*Sundale Research
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To Our Customers, Employees,
Partners and Shareholders:

Fiscal 2007 was an exciting and transforinational year for
Animal Health International, Inc., during which we made
steady progress toward realizing our v sior of becoming the
leading previder of animal health procucts worldwide.

During the year, we transitioned from beinz a well-respected
private company to a vibrant public enterprise, executing a
$149 miliion initial public offering that cubstantially strength-
ened our balance sheet, provided us with ample capital to
fuel our organic growth, and positioned us to accelerate our
acquisition initiatives to drive our business expansion.

At the same time, we effectively zcqured six privately
owned companies that added broad <tratagic and financial
value to our organization. These “tuc-under” acquisitions
enhance our delivery of quality product; and innovative
services that help improve production outcomes, develop
markets and build profits. These accuisitions are already
financially accretive, and we expect them to generate
increasing value for our shareholders now and in the future,

We alsc improved the way we meet cusiomer needs by
expanding our ecommerce cffering and capability, ramping
up the availability of inventory in the field and by adding new
regional distribution sites. These initiatives have strengthened
our ability to deliver our products into sur zustomers hands
more rapidly, particularly in our companior animal business.

Qur experienced management team conzinued to run our
businesses effectively despite the lime and resources
required of our public offering, This is evidenced by our
success in meeting or exceeding nearly all of our financial
benchmarks, and setting new records in sales and operating
income, during the period. Qur core »eef and dairy cattle
businesses grew well, hitting all of our performance goals
and sofidifying cur market-leading pos tions in spite of high
corn prices triggered by current strong demand for ethanol.

We are proud of cur longstanding success and we attribute
our continued perfermance to the streng:h of our unique
corporate culture. Serving our customers at an exceptionalty
high level is our mandate at AHI, and we recognize that our
own employees are responsible for meeting the demands of
our customers. We reward their dedization and loyalty by




investing in new training and development programs that
expose them to a range of growth opportunities. Qur
approach, combined with a work environment that fosters
innovation, creativity and a willingness to take risk, is at
the heart of our ability to deliver strong performance and
continuous improvement throughout the organization.

As we look ahead to fiscal 2008, we firmly believe that
we are well positioned to continue to grow our business at
a rate that exceeds market growth and deliver strong results.
Qur global industry is growing rapidly. driven by 6.5 billion
hungry people who demand animal proteins as a food source,
and spurred by rising ownership of canine, feline and equine
pets. We are the leader in the production-animal business
and growing rapidly in the companion-animal business in the
$5.3 billion U.5. marketplace, and have significant growth
opportunities through continued expansion of these busi-
nesses. We have strong relationships with the largest manu-
facturers, and we play a key role in the supply chain, offering
a strong value proposition to manufacturers and customers
alike. In today's robust acquisition market, we are a preferred
acquirer. offering companies a relationship where they can
retain their skilled management teams and individual per-
sonalities, while leveraging value-added services that help
them grow. We have a strong corporate culture that has
formed the cormnerstone of our business for more than a
decade. We have a well-trained sales force. We have a host
of brands that are well recognized and valued in the markets
in which we operate, and we have a substantial network 1o
distribute cur products. We have proven earnings growth
and strong cash flow with low capital requirements.

We will continue to grow by capitalizing on these substantial
opportunities ahead. Above all, we have an experienced and
dedicated team, a2 proven growth strategy. and are committed
to driving results.

< _ 2

James C. Robison
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Industry Growth
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2007 industry growth 15 estmoted AHI growih based on {fiscal year,
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Distribution Model

We use a centralized procurement and distribution medel
whereby approximately 56% of the dollar volume of our
customer purchases flows through our central replenishment
and distribution facility in Memphis, Tennessee. From the
Memphis facility, we then deliver products on a weekly basis
to over 70 distribution locations. The majority of the orders
are delivered within one business day.

Our centralized procurement and inventory management
model provides us with several competitive advantages. We
are able to effectively purchase large quantities of products,
allowing all divisions, independent of size, to receive the
lowest possible price, Furthermore, by having an organized
purchasing strategy, versus the non-coordinated regicnal
strategy employed by many competiters, we manage inventory
more effectively and reduce working capital investment. We
believe our procurement disciplines provide us with a gross
margin advantzge relative to our competitors. Our centralized
model is highly spaGEEble and allows us to increase order flow
through the Mé‘mp’\his facility without costly buildouts of

additional distribution facilities. &

. i e
* HOME OFFICE e TS
A CENTRAL DISTRIRUTION FACILITY

Sales

Qur distribution locations are crganized along custemer
channels, each under the directicn of a customer Group
President for each of our primary customer groups (i.e., beef,
dairy, peultry and swine, veterinarian and dealer). Each of our
distribution locations services customers in ~heir surrounding
geographical areas on a weekly basis. Wi have an expe-
rienced and loyal sales force comprised o7 326 employees
(27 managers, 238 field sales represertatives and 61 inside
sales representatives). Many members of our sales force
have spent their entire careers in the animel health industry,
providing an extensive knowledge base that distinguishes us
from cur competitors. Our sales force 1s specialized by
customer market, and members of our sales force have

been with us for an average of nine years.

Marketing

We have a dedicated marketing department consisting of 20
employees. Our marketing professionals cover all customer
groups in animal health (beef, dairy, poultry/swine, veterinarian
and déaler). These marketing professionals, together with our
Group Presidents, develop customized markesting programs to
" increase product sales and usage. manage |ayalty programs,
monitor supplier management programs and support

“-manufacturers’ new preduct launches,
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

[} TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 1-33273

ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 71-0982698
(State or other jurisdiction of {LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
7 Village Circle, Suite 200
Westlake, Texas 76262
{Address of principal executive offices) {Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (817) 859-3000

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(B) OF THE ACT:
Title of each class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock, $0.01 par value The NASDAQ Stock Market, LLC
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(G) OF THE ACT: NONE

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the
Securities Act.  Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d)

of the Act. Yes [] No .
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or

15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the

registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 4035 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405

of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in
definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11 of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a
non-accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2.)

Large Accelerated Filer [] Accelerated Filer [] Non-Accelerated Filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act). Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of September 17,

2007 was approximately $133.1 million (based on the closing price for the registrant’s common stock on the

NASDAQ Global Market of $11.39 per share). At June 30, 2007, 24,329,670 shares of the registrant’s common

stock were outstanding.
Deocuments Incorporated by Reference

fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Portions of such proxy statement are incorporated by reference into Part T1l of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The registrant intends to file a proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days of the end of the
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of “Safe Harbor Provisions” of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act” ), These statements involve a number of risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking
statements. Factors which could materially affect such forward-looking statements can be found in the section
entitled “Risk Factors” in Part 1, Item 1A, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Investors are urged to consider
these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements made herein are only made as of
the date hereof and we will undertake no obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect
subsequent events or circumstances.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to "AHL” the “Company,” “we,” “us™ or “our” are to
Animal Health International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries.

PART ]

Item 1. Business.
General

We are a leading distributor of animal health products in the United States. We sell more than 40,000
products sourced from over 1,500 manufacturers to over 65,000 customers, as well as provide consultative
services 1o our customers in the highly fragmented animal health products industry. Products we distribute
include pharmaceuticals, vaccines, parasiticides, diagnostics, capital equipment, sanitizers, devices and supplies.
Our principal customers are veterinarians, production animal operators and animal health product retailers. We
believe our customers purchase from us due to our longstanding relationships with them, knowledge of their
businesses, service and ability to assist them in their operations. We have a 326 person sales force, including 238
field sales representatives. We process daily shipments from our central replenishment and distribution facility in
Memphis, Tennessee and 74 distribution locations strategically located in the United States, Canada and Taiwan.
Our corporate headquarters is located in the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area.

Our business commenced operations in 1954 as part of a family-owned drug store business. Following a
series of business combinations, we were renamed Walco International, Inc. in 1972. In September 2006, we
changed our name to Animal Health International, Inc. We completed our initial public offering on January 30,
2007. We were organized as a Delaware corporation in 2005.

We maintain a website on the World Wide Web at www.ahii.com. We make available, free of charge
through our website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K, including exhibits thereto, and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Qur reports that are filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC are also available at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. You may also obtain copies of any
of our reports filed with, or furnished to, the SEC, free of charge, at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F
Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549.

Industry

According to Sundale Research, an independent market research company, animal health product sales in
the United States for 2006 totaled approximately $5.6 billion, an increase from approximately $4.7 billion in
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2003, representing a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 6.0%. The animal health products market
is divided into two markets: production animals and companion animals, The preduction animal rarket primarily
consists of beef and dairy cattle, poultry and swine, while the companion animal market primarily consists of
horses, dogs and cats. Sundale Research estimates that in 2006 the market for production animal healih products
was approximately $2.5 billion and the market for companion animal health products was approximately

$3.1 billion. '

Distributors are critical to the animal health products supply chain. They provide thousands of multi-product
manufacturers with cost-effective access to millions of geographically diverse customers, Distributors also
provide customers with access to a broad selection of products through a single channel, thereby helping them
efficiently manage inventory levels.

Strategy

Our mission is to become the leading worldwide provider of animal health products and services in the
production animal and companion animal health products markets. Our strategy to achieve this mission is
outlined below.

Continue to grow our business organically, We intend to significantly increase our share of animal health
product purchases by optimizing our sales efforts and expanding our consultative services, We will continue to
sell additional products needed by our customers, add distribution locations to better serve our custemzr base,
increase our focus on corporate accounts and recruit and train sales representatives to successfully penetrate new
territories. We also believe that we can continue to extend our strong manufacturer relationships from our
production animal health products business to our companion animal health products customers,

Expand sales of proprietary products. We believe that the quality of our proprietary branded products in
conjunction with our competitive pricing strategy has generated a loyal customer base that is confiden in our
branded products. We believe we can partner with domestic and international manufacturers to continue to grow
our proprietary branded products business by marketing new specialty niche products. We selectively rarget
product areas to expand our proprietary branded products pertfolio while maintaining our strategic manufacturer
relationships. A significant number of products will be coming off patent in the next several years, providing us
with a pipeline of proprietary branded product opportunities.

Continue to improve operational efficiencies. We have made significant investments in our distribution
infrastructure and information technology platform over the past several years. In order to maximize profitability
and maintain a competitive position in the marketplace, we will continue to focus on improving our opzrations
and distribution processes. ‘

Make selective acquisitions. The global market for animal health products distribution is highly fragmented
with many national, regional and local distributors. We actively screen, target, contact and evaluate potential
acquisitions. Our acquisition strategy is to target complementary businesses in the animal health product market
that provide, among other things, access to additional product lines, sales representatives, customer opportunities,
manufacturer relationships, sales territories and value-added services both in the United States and
internationally. We believe that our experienced and disciplined management team, together with our
organizational platform buiit on scaleable information management systems and processes, make us well
positioned to participate in the consolidation of the industry.

Products

We offer a broad selection of over 40,000 animal health products, including a number of proprietacy
branded products, which we source from over 1,500 manufacturers. We also offer our customers additional
products through special order. Our products are comprised of four major categories: pharmaceuticals,
biologicals, medicated additives and other products.




Pharmaceuricals, Pharmaceuticals include dosage form medicines employed in disease prevention and
treatment programs. Pharmaceuticals such as antibiotics, anthelmintics, insecticides and implants include both
over-the-counter products, which can be sold directly to end-users, and ethical products, which are sold to, or
through, veterinarians.

*  Antibiotics are administered for the treatment and prevention of diseases such as chronic respiratory
disease and for growth promotion. Antibiotics include products such as tetracyclines, penicillins,
erythromycins, cephalosporins and fluroquinolones. Antibiotics are available in injectable, bolus (i.e.
pill), additive and drench (t.e. liquid) forms.

« Anthelmintics are deworming agents administered on a routine basis to animais for the prevention and
treatment of internal parasites and worms in production animals, Worms include gastrointestinal
roundworms, stomach worms, intestinal worms and lungworms. Anthelmintics are available in
injectable, bolus, drench, additive, pour-on and paste forms.

* Insecticides are used to control insect populations on animals and their premises, and are administered
on a routine, preventative basis. Insecticides can be used to control flies, lice, ticks, mites and fleas, and
are available in dust, liquid, spray and ear tag forms. Endectocides are active against both internal and
external parasites and hence are both an anthelmintic and an insecticide,

* Implants are used for the promotion of growth in animals, to increase weight gain and improve
efficiency in cattle.

Biologicals. Biologicals, including bacterial and viral vaccines and antitoxins, stimulate immunity to disease
in both production and companion animals. Bacterial vaccines are bacterial products that are used on a routine
basis to prevent diseases such as black leg, leptospirosis, red water and shipping fever. Viral vaccines are used
for the control of respiratory and gastrointestinal diseases. Antitoxins provide short-term protection for certain
soil borne and certain other infections such as tetanus.

Medicated additives. Medicated additives include highly regulated products such as antibiotics and anti-
bacterials, and are used at low levels to promote growth and improve efficiency in production animals and, at
high levels, for therapeutic treatment.

Other products, including probiotics (i.e. beneficial bacteria-based treatments), nutritionals, fluids,
diagnostics, capital equipment, medical devices and supplies, pet food, cleansers and sanitizers. Other products
include disposable kits, replacement strips and reagents {(excluding equipment and devices) used in testing all
animal species’ body fluids and tissue for disease and/or conditions or in residue testing of animal products.
While heartworm diagnostics are at the core of this market, other products also include a full range of blood tests
for disorders such as ehrlichia, feline leukemia, parvovirus, feline infectious peritonitis and feline
immuncdeficiency virus. Chemicals include sanitizers, cleaning agents, disinfectants, insecticides and
rodenticides. Medlical supplies are used in cleaning and sanitizing equipment and facilities, as well as diagnostic
and suture components and include grooming products such as brushes and shampoos.

Proprietary branded products. In addition to the four major categories of products discussed above, we
selectively target new product areas to expand our proprietary branded products portfolio, while maintaining our
strategic manufacturer relationships. We market these products, such as vaccines, antibiotics, nutritionals and
general pharmaceuticals, under the RXV Products, AGRIpharm, First Companion, Mineral Max and Ivermax
brands. We believe that the quality of our proprietary branded products in conjunction with our competitive
pricing strategy has generated a loyal customer base that is confident in our brands. We believe we can partner
with domestic and international manufacturers to continue to grow our proprietary branded products business by
{1} marketing new specialty niche products and (2) developing proprietary branded products for products coming
off patent. Proprictary branded product manufacturing is done both by third-party contract manufacturers as well
as branded product companies that have excess capacity. We believe that we are well-positioned to capitalize on
the trend towards increased private brands given our strong relationships with manufacturers and strong market
position in the distribution of animal health products.



Consultative services

In addition to providing a broad selection of animal health products, we offer a comprehensive set of
consultative services, software and equipment that differentiates us from our competition and further solidifies
what we believe is our leading market position. We do not generate any revenue from our consultative: services,
software or equipment. These services include:

Health and operations management software. We offer user-friendly beef cattle computer management
systems. Our proprietary health management software allows producers to accurately document the health history
and treatment costs for each animal. Our accounting software package enables producers to organize financial
data for their operations including information on employees, taxes, commodity costs and transaction records.

Microingredient machines. We install microingredient machines that (1) precisely measure expensive feed
additive ingredients used to complete balanced feeding rations for cattle and (2) store and administer
pharmaceuticals. This service is sold with discounts to customers purchasing large orders of feed additives.

Herd health management. We work with production animal veterinarians to design specific animal tealth
packages with vaccination and treatment protocols. We assist customers in the implementation and
administration of these packages and help veterinarians in disease identification and vaccine manageraent.

Dairy technicians. Our dedicated technicians assist customers with the cleaning, maintenance and
replacement of dairy equipment and also provide various disinfectant supplies used by customers to maintain
sanitary facilities. Additionally, our technicians interface with dairy cooperatives and help manage accounting
and payment processes.

Logistics services. We provide contract logistics, warehousing and delivery services to both manufacturers
and customers. We also provide customers with microbacterial monitoring, cleaning and disinfecting and litter
management Services.

Merchandising services. Our field sales representatives visit large dealers and provide shelf management
and organization, product information and monitoring services on a monthly basis.

Electronic commerce platform. Qur user-friendly e-commerce application allows customers to review
product descriptions, access customer-specific product pricing, view current vendor promotions, download
detailed product usage history and place orders.

Newsletters and publications. We publish weekly newsletters customized by market. Our publications
include: Heads Up (targeted to the beef market), Dairy Health Update (targeted to the dairy market) and DVM
Resources Industry Update (targeted towards veterinarians). These newsletters include information regarding
recent product introductions, health articles, advice columns and conferences and seminars. '

Value in purchasing. Our Value In Purchasing (“VIP"} program is designed to reward our custoimers for
repeat business. For every purchase made from our VIP Premier Product Line, customers earn points redzemable
through our program catalog.

Promotional material development and disbursement. Our marketing and graphic design professionals assist
small manufacturers in developing and producing promotional materials for their animal health products.

Customers

We have a diverse customer base with over 65,000 accounts consisting of veterinarians, production animal
operators and animal health product retailers. We believe our good reputation for customer service, product
selection and high quality products has enabled us to establish and maintain this customer base. In fiscal 2007, no
customer represented more than 1.5% of net sales and our 10 largest accounts only comprised approximately 5%
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of net sales. We have over 29,000 accounts served directly by our sales force and approximately 36,000
additional accounts that are served by Internet and catalog sales. OQur customers range in size from single-
practitioner veterinarians to large, corporate cattle feeding operations. Due to longstanding relationships between
our sales force and our customers, 90% of our top 500 customers that placed orders with us in 2002 still order
from us today.

Beef customers. Our beef customers are divided into three primary sub-groups: cow/calf, stocker and
feedlots. Cattle require animal health products during each stage to optimize weight gain, shorten production
cycles, prevent disease and maintain overall health. Additionally, as transportation is physically taxing on cattle,
animal health products are administered each time cattle are transported between stages. We have historically
targeted stocker and feedlot customers, most of whom have over 500 and 2,000 cattle, respectively. Our
acquisition of the Hi-Pro division of Friona Industries, Inc. in 2002 expanded our presence in the cow/calf and
stocker sub-markets. We sell directly to cow/calf customers with over 200 cattle. We also employ a direct
marketing strategy to address smaller cow/calf customers, who are highly fragmented and purchase in smaller
volumes. These customers are also serviced via our sales to production animal veterinarians, dealers and retail
stores. OQur e-commerce initiative reaches small cow-calf producers which have herd sizes of 50-200 cattle. The
key products sold to these customers include endectocides, antibiotics, growth promoting implants, vaccines,
identification tags and nutritionals.

»  Cow/Calf. According to the USDA, this sub-group is extremely fragmented with over 982,000 cattle
operations. However, approximately 612,000 operations have 49 or fewer cattle, Calves remain in the
cow/calf stage from birth until reaching approximately 400 Ibs {roughly seven months) at which point
they are sold to buying agents and delivered to stocker locations. Per-cattle animal health product
spending is approximately $17 during the cow/calf stage.

* Stocker. This market consists of operations helding large tracts of land predominantly in the central and
western states where cattle are moved to graze for four months prior to being sold to feedlots. During
their stay, cattle increase in weight from 400 Ibs to 600 Ibs. Per-cattle spending is approximately $12
during the stocker stage.

* Feedlots. Feedlots are typically located in the central and western U.S. regions and hold several
thousand to 100,000 cattle in open pens. There are approximately 2,100 feedlots in the United States
with capacity greater than 1,000 cattle. Cattle undergo their final growth stage prior to processing and
increase in weight from 600 lbs to 1,200 lbs. Length of stay approximates 90 to 120 days and per-cattle
spending during this stage is approximatety $20. Feedlot animal health product requirements mainly
consist of de-wormers, growth implants, preventive animal health products (substantially the same
products required by cow/calf and stocker customers), acute/chronic disease treatments and medicated
additives for growth promotion.

Dairy customers. We believe we are a leader in the dairy market. We target dairy farms with a minimum
size of 500 caitle, with our average dairy customer having 1,500 cattle. The dairy market is undergoing
significant consolidation resulting in a shift towards larger operations. According to USDA estimates, dairies
with 500 or more cattle currently account for 45% of the U.S. milk producing cow population, an increase from
24% in 1997. Given our strong relationships with larger dairies and our national footprint, we are seeking to
continue to gain share as dairy consolidation continues. The key products sold to these customers include
endectocides, antibiotics, reproductive products, vaccines, identification tags, nutritionals and sanitation
products.

Poultry and swine customers. We sell animal health products to major poultry and swine integrators, Qur
field sales representatives typically visit customer locations at least once every four weeks and facilitate product
delivery on a weekly basis. We sell to local production supervisors, centralized purchasing managers and
production animal veterinarians who provide herd management consulting services to the major integrators. We
believe we will increase our market share with major integrators as we further develop customized national
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account management programs. The key products sold to these customers include antibiotics, vaccines,
nutritionals, sanitation products and bio-security products.

Companion animal customers. Qur companion animal health products sales are made through the
veterinarian and over-the-counter channels, with the majority of sales made to rural, mixed-practice
veterinarians, Over the past three years, we have begun to penetrate the urban and suburban veterinarian markets,
visiting veterinarians in these areas on a bi-weekly basis. We intend to leverage our centralized procurement and
inventory management model to develop a leading cost-to-serve position in the companion animal health
products market. By providing competitive pricing and superior service, we seek to build on our strong position
in the companion animal health products distribution market. The key products sold to these customers inlude
flea and tick controls and preventative products, antibiotics, vaccines, arthritis treatments and pharmaceuticals.
By leveraging our service platform, we intend to capture market share rapidly within the fragmented veterinarian
customer base of approximately 27,000 veterinary practices as of December 31, 2005, according to the American
Veterinary Medical Association.

Corporate accounts. We have recently hired two corporate account sales representatives to solicit laige,
corporate customers for the production animal health products and companion animal health products that we
distribute. We believe corporate account customers represent an attractive growth opportunity.

Dealer retail. The dealer retail division distributes animal health products to tack, feed and animal health
retailers that generally exist in rural areas with high animal populations. These retailers then resell these animal
health products to individual animal owners and sub-scale production animal operators.

Manufacturers

We distribute more than 40,000 products sourced from over 1,500 manufacturers. We currently do not
manufacture any of our products and are dependent on manufacturers for our supply of products. We believe we
have access to leading brand name products in the product categories we serve. The manufacturers we purchase
from include many large multi-national and domestic manufacturers of animal health products. While our
manufacturers often have relationships with multiple distributors, our 10 largest manufacturers have been
working with us for over 20 years.

We believe that effective purchasing is a key to maintaining our position as a leading provider of animal
health care products. We regularly assess our purchasing needs and our manufacturers’ product offerings to
obtain products at favorable prices. In addition, our ability to source products globally provides us with 1 greater
selection of products that can be purchased at favorable prices. Smaller distributors often do not have thz ability
to access these overseas manufacturers. While we purchase products from many manufacturers and ther: are
generally multiple manufacturers for most animal health product categories, we do have concentration of
aggregate purchases with certain manufacturers. For our fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, our top manufacturer,
Pfizer, supplied products that accounted for approximately 24% of our net sales and represents the only
manufacturer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales during this period. Qur 10 largest manufacturers
accounted for approximately 64% of our net sales for our fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

There are two major types of transactions associated with the flow of products from our manufacturers,
through us, to our customers. Traditional “buy/sell” transactions, which account for more than 99% of our
business in fiscal 2007, involve the direct purchase of products by us from manufacturers, which we manage and
store in our warehouses. A customer then places an order with us, and the order is then picked, packed, shipped
and invoiced by us to our customer, followed by payment from our customer to us. On a limited basis, we also
sell products to our cusiomers under agency agreements with some of our manufacturers. Under this madel,
when we receive orders for products from the customer, we transmit the order to the manufacturer who then
picks, packs and ships the products. In some cases our vendor invoices and collects payment from our customer,
while in other cases we invoice and collect payment from our customer. We receive a commission payinent for
soliciting the order and for providing additional services.
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Our livestock products agreement with Pfizer provides that we shall supply selected customers in the cattle
and swine fields with Pfizer products. In return we are entitled to certain service fees and rebates. Pfizer is
required to indemnify us against any third party claims for personal injury or property damage arising out of the
distribution or sale of Pfizer products, except in certain circumstances, and any claims alleging that the Pfizer
products are defective, except in certain limited situations. Pfizer also reserves the right to sell directly to our
customers or any other party. The livestock products agreement has a one year term that expires on December 31,
2007 and may be terminated by either party with or without cause upon 30 days prior written notice. In addition,
Pfizer may terminate the agreement upon 15 days prior written notice if we take any action that harms the
goodwill of Pfizer.

We typically do not have long-term written agreements with our manufacturers. The written agreements that
we have with our manufacturers generally provide for annual renewals, 30 to 90 day termination provisions and
free on board destination shipping,.

We collaboratively establish annual sales growth goals with a number of our manufacturers. Attainment of
these goals may affect annual rebates with several of these manufacturers. Since many of our manufacturer
rebates are based on a calendar year, historically the quarter ended December 31 has been our most significant
quarter for recognition of rebates. Manufacturer rebates are collaboratively established with many manufacturers
and include inventory purchase rebates and sales-related rebates. Rebates range from one-time purchase
opportunities to sales-related programs that last a month, a quarter or the entire calendar year. The programs can
be related to a specific product or product line, or related to the type of customer or specific species of animal.

Product returns from our customers and to our manufacturers occur in the ordinary course of business. We
extend our customers the same return of goods policies as are extended to us by our manufacturers. We do not
believe that our operations will be adversely impacted due to the return of products.

Sales and marketing

Sales. Our sales organization consists of group presidents for each of our five primary customer groups (i.e.
beef, dairy, poultry and swine, veterinarian and dealer), regional sales managers, division/location managers and
sales force employees. Our 76 distribution locations are organized along customer channels, each under the
direction of a customer group president. We have an experienced and loyal sales force comprised of 326
employees (27 managers, 238 field sales representatives and 6! inside sales representatives). Each of our
distribution locations employs one to 45 field sales representatives who service customers in their surrounding
geographical areas on a weekly basis. Many members of our sales force have spent their entire careers in the
animal health industry, providing an extensive knowledge base that distinguishes us from our competitors. Our
sales force is specialized by customer market, and members of our sales force have been with us for an average
of nine years. Our annual field sales representative turnover has historically been approximately 12%.

We are focused on providing high-quality training for our sates force. Training entails program selling,
territory management, pricing management and sales technique workshops. Additionally, our field sales
representatives meet annually as a group at our national sales meeting where fiscal year results are reviewed,
outlooks for the various markets and product categories are presented and best practices shared. Bi-annual and
quarterly sales meetings are also held for markets (i.e. beef, dairy, poultry and swine) and individual locations,
respectively.

We use various tools to evaluate and improve our performance. For example, our field sales representatives
receive customized monthly Territory Performance Reports, which track detailed product sales, gross margins,
budget variances and other marketing statistics. We also provide software applications and performance tracking
tools to our sales force, such as Sales Pro, which is a proprietary, automated software package that allows our
sales force to analyze product and pricing trends. We share sales information throughout the organization in the
form of a scoreboard, which breaks down sales and gross profit by market, region and location. In addition, we
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publish monthly reports ranking various metrics and compiling best practices. Several “clubs” such as the
Presidents Club are used to distinguish field sales representatives that achieve specific sales targets and maintain
high organizational standards.

Marketing. We have an extensive marketing organization. We maintain a dedicated marketing department
consisting of 20 employees. Our ten marketing professionals cover every customer group in animal health {beef,
dairy, poultry/swine, veterinarian and dealer). These marketing professionals, together with our business group
presidents, develop customized marketing programs to increase product sales and usage, manage loyalty
programs, monitor supplier management programs and support manufacturers’ new product launches. Three
graphic artists produce detailed product technical sheets, catatogs and promotional literature. Qur dedicated
proprietary brand manager devises marketing plans for our proprietary branded product lines. Finally, an
e-commerce manager oversees the development of Internet product ordering platforms and tracking features.

E-Commerce. We have a user-friendly e-commerce application that allows customers to review proguct
descriptions, access customer-specific product pricing, view current vendor promotions, download detaile:d
product usage history and piace orders.

Distribution model

We use a centralized procurement and distribution model whereby approximately 56% of the dollar volume
of our customer purchases flows through our central replenishment and distribution facility in Memphis,
Tennessee. The majority of the orders are delivered within one business day. From the Memphis facility, we then
deliver products on a weekly basis to our 74 distribution locations.

Our centralized procurement and inventory management model provides us with several competitive
advantages. We are able to effectively purchase large quantities of products, allowing all divisions, independent
of size, to receive the lowest possible price. Furthermore, by having an organized purchasing strategy, versus the
non-coordinated regional strategy employed by many competitors, we manage inventory more effectively and
reduce working capital investment. We believe our procurement disciplines provide us with a gross margin
advantage relative to our competitors. Our centralized model is highly scalable and allows us to increase order
flow through the Memphis facility without costly buildouts of additional distribution facilities.

We expect our model to become an area of differentiation and believe it provides a competitive advantage in
our companion animal operations. Our model enables overnight product delivery from our Memphis in\ventory
center using third-party common-carrier delivery services, thereby satistying veterinarians’” demands for rapid
product delivery. As we expand our companion animal operations, we expect to achieve significant purchasing
economies and working capital efficiencies relative to competitors given:

* our strong relationships with leading manufacturers of animal health products;

* our centralized procurement and distribution system that minimizes redundant purchases and
inventories;

* our ability to leverage our fixed cost base; and

« our scalable infrastructure.

Information technology

We use a J.D. Edwards ERP information technology system. We have invested significant management
resources in customizing the system for use across all of our divisions and have trained employees to utilize its
functionality. Internatly, we use the system for inventory management and product tracking. Purchasing
managers can query the database to develop detailed product ordering and shipping histories, track ordering
status and monitor product requests from field sales representatives. Managers and field sales representatives
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have access to real-time product data such as inventory quantities (both at our central replenishment and
distribution facility and at individual distribution locations}, upcoming shipments and timing of deliveries. The
system tracks inventory turns at specific distribution locations allowing us to better manage the appropriate
inventory level for each product at every distribution location. This enables us to move inventory from one
distribution center to another as needed.

We also provide manufacturers with critical data. Traditionally, manufacturers tended to have difficulty
tracking products after they had been shipped to distributors. Therefore, it was cumbersome for manufacturers to
accurately assess customer demand and pricing thresholds. Using our information technology systems, we send
daily updates to key manufacturers regarding product shipments, extensively detailing both end locations as well
as product pricing. Understanding this information allows us 1o partner with manufacturers to develop
customized supplier management programs that aid our manufacturers in effectively placing various products.

We believe our Internet platform is well-positioned to benefit from increased electronic ordering by our
customer base. Qur Internet ordering system is a vser-friendly application that enables customers to review
product descriptions, access customer-specific product pricing, view current vendor promotions, download
detailed product usage history and place orders. While most customers choose to receive products on a weekly
basis, we offer customized inventory programs that allow customers to easily maintain inventories for certain
products. We ensure availability and immediate delivery of these products. Because of its accessibility and ease
of use, we anticipate that veterinarians will increasingly use this electronic platform for direct product ordering,
which we believe would increase the productivity of our sales force.

Acquisitions

In October 2006, we acquired certain assets of Farm City Animal Supply, Inc., a regional dairy animal
health products distributor located in Caldwell, Idaho.

In October 2006, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Hawaii Mega-Cor., Inc., a regional companion
animal health products and pet food distributor headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii. This acquisition enabled us
to expand our market presence to companion animal veterinarians and pet food retailers in Hawaii, as well as
provide animal health products to military bases throughout the Pacific Rim.

In November 2006, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Paul E. Blackmer, D.V.M., Inc., a regional
dairy animal health products distributor and service provider located in Bakersfield and Chino, California.

In January 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Cattleman’s Supply, Inc., a regional dairy
animal health products distributor located in Tucson, Arizona.

In March 2007, we acquired the business assets of Veterinarian’s Outlet of Sunnyside, Inc., a regional dairy
animal health products distributor located in Sunnyside, Washington,

In April 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Veterinarian’s Qutlet Incorporated, a regional
dairy animal health products distributor and service provider located in Tulare, California. Veterinarian’s Outlet
works directly with licensed veterinarians to provide animal health products, advice, consulting and lab services
10 dairy farms,

Competition

The distribution and manufacture of animal health products is highly competitive. We compete directly with
both geographically diverse and regional, broad-line animal health products distributors, as well as companies
that specialize in distributing primarily ethical drug products to veterinarians. Additionally, certain manufacturers
compete through the direct marketing of products. We compete based on customer relationships, service and
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delivery, product selection, price and e-commerce capabilitics. Some of our competitors, particularly those in the
companion animal products market with bigger market share, have greater financial and other resources than we
do. Most of our products are available from several sources, including other distributors and manufacturers, and
our customers tend to have relationships with several distributors. In addition, our competitors could obtain
exclusive rights to distribute certain products, eliminating our ability to distribute those products. Consolidation
in the animal health products industry could result in existing competitors increasing their market share, which
could give them greater pricing power, decrease our revenues and profitability, and increase the competition for
customers. See “Risk factors—Risks related to our business—Consolidation in the animal health products
industry may decrease our net sales and profitability.”

Our primary competitors, excluding manufacturers, include the following and other national, regional, local
and specialty distributors: Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, IVESCO, LLC (Iowa Veterinary Supply),
Lextron, Inc., MWI Veterinary Supply, Inc., Professional Veterinary Products, Ltd., and Webster Veterinzry
Supply, a division of Patterson Companies, Inc.

The role of the animal health product distributor has changed dramatically during the last decade. Suzcessful
distributors are increasingly providing value-added services in addition to the products they traditionally
provided. We believe that to remain competitive we must continue to add value to the distribution channel, while
removing unnecessary costs associated with product movement.

Distribution of animal health products is often characterized as “ethical” and “over-the-counter,” conmonly
referred to as OTC, channels of product movement. Ethical distribution is defined as those sales of goods 1o
licensed veterinarians for use in their professional practice. Many of these products are prescription and nust be
sold or prescribed by a licensed professional. OTC distribution is the movement of non-prescription goods to the
animal owner and the end user. Many of these products are also purchased by the licensed veterinarian for
professional use or for resale to their client. There are numerous ethical and OTC distribution companies
operating throughout the United States and competition in the animal health products industry is intense. See
“Risk factors—Risks related to our business——Qur market is highly competitive. Failure to compete successfully
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.”

Trademarks and other intellectual property

Our success depends in part on our proprietary technology. We rely on our trademarks, trade names and
brand names to distinguish our proprietary branded products and services from the products and services of our
competitors. As of June 30, 2007, we have registered 67 and applied to register 14 additional trademarks. We
also rely on unpatented proprietary technology. To protect our trade secrets and other proprietary information, we
require employees, consultants, advisors and collaborators to enter into confidentiality agreements. As of
June 30, 2007, we owned one U.S. patent. This patent will expire in approximately eight years.

There are always risks that third parties may claim that we are infringing upon their intellectual property
rights and we could be prevented from selling our products, or suffer significant litigation or licensing expenses
as a result of these claims. See “Risk factors—Risks related to our business—If third parties claim that we
infringe upon their intellectual property rights, our operating profits could be adversely affected.” In addlition,
third parties may infringe upon or design around our intellectual property rights, and we may expend significant
resources enforcing our rights or suffer competitive injury with adverse effects on our business and results of
operations. See “Risk factors—Risks related to our business—Qur intellectual property rights may be iradequate
to protect our business.”

Insurance and risk management

We purchase insurance to cover standard risks in our industry, including policies to cover general products
liability, workers compensation, auto liability and other casualty and property risks. We do not, however, carry
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business interruption insurance. Therefore, we will not be compensated for certain losses that may occur as a
result of a major disruption to our facilities. Our insurance rates are dependent upon our safety record as well as
trends in the insurance industry. We utilize a paid loss self-insurance plan for health, general liability and
workers’ compensation coverage. Predetermined loss limits have been aranged with insurance companies to
limit our per occurrence and annual aggregate cash outlay. Accrued expenses and other liabilities include the
estimated incurred but unreported costs to settle unpaid claims and estimated future claims.

We face an inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims in the event that, among other things, the use
of products sold by us result in injury, such as the death of animals treated with our products. With respect to
product liability coverage, we carry insurance coverage typical of our industry and product lines. Our coverage
involves self-insured retentions with primary and excess liability coverage above the retention amount, For our
non-proprietary products, we have the ability to refer claims to most of our manufacturers and their insurers to
pay the costs associated with any claims arising from such manufacturer’s products, In most cases, our insurance
covers such claims that are not adequately covered by a manufacturer’s insurance and provides for excess
secondary coverage above the limits provided by our manufacturers.

We self-insure auto physical damage exposure risk and certain property and casualty risks due to our
analysis of the risks, the frequency and severity of a loss and the cost of insurance for the risks, We believe that
the amount of self-insurance is not significant and will not have an adverse impact on our performance. In
addition, we may from time to time self-insure liability with respect to specific ingredients in products that we
may sell.

Government regulation

Qur manufacturers of pharmaceuticals, vaccines, parasiticides, insecticides and pesticides and certain
controlled substances are typically regulated by federal agencies, such as FDA, USDA, EPA and DEA, as well as
most similar state agencies. Therefore, we are subject, either directly or indirectly, to regulation by the same
agencies. Most states and the DEA require us to be registered or otherwise keep a current permit or license to
handle controlled substances. Manufacturers of vaccines are required by the FDA to comply with various storage
and shipping criteria and requirements for vaccines. To the extent we distribute such products, we must comply
with the same requirements, including, without limitation, the storage and shipping requirements for vaccines. In
addition, we are subject to regulations by the Department of Transportation relating to the transportation of our
products.

State boards of pharmacy require us to be licensed in their respective states for the sale and distribution of
pharmaceutical products and medical devices within their jurisdictions. As a distributor of prescription
pharmaceutical products, we are subject to the regulatory requirements of the FDA and regulatory requirements
promulgated under the Prescription Drug Marketing Act (PDMA). The PDMA and FDA provide governance and
authority to the states to provide minimum standards, terms and conditions for the licensing by state licensing
authoerities of persons who “engage” in wholesale distribution (as defined by each state regulatory agency) in
interstate commerce of prescription drugs. With this authority, states require site-specific registrations for the
parties that engage in the selling and/or physical distribution of pharmaceutical products within and into their
state in the form of out-of-staie registrations. Selling and/or distribution without the appropriate registrations may
be subject to fines, penalties, misdemeanor or felony convictions, and/or seizure of the products involved.

Some states (as well as certain cities and counties) require us to collect sales taxes/use taxes on certain types
of animal health products. We are also subject to laws governing our relationship with employees, including
minimum wage requirements, overtime, working conditions and citizenship requirements. In addition, we are
subject to additional regulations regarding our hiring practices because several federal, state and local
governmental agencies are our customers.
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We have implemented internal procedures to help ensure that we are in compliance with all statutes and
regulations applicable to animal healthcare distribution, as well as other general health and safety laws and
regulations, and that we possess all necessary permits and licenses required for the conduct of our business. See
“Risk factors—Risks related to our business—If we fail to comply with or become subject to more onerous
government regulations, our business could be adversely affected.”

Environmental

We are subject to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations concerning, among other things, air
and wastewater discharges, the generation, handling, storage, transportation and disposal of pesticides, hazardous
waste and toxic substances. Pursuant to some of these laws and regulations, we are required to obtain permiits
from governmental authorities for certain operations. We cannot assure you that we have been or will be at all
times in complete compliance with such laws, regulations and permits. If we violate or fail to comply with these
laws, regulations or permits, we could be fined or otherwise sanctioned by regulators.

We could also be responsible for costs incuired relating to contamination at our third party waste disprosal
sites or relating to damages incurred as a result of human exposure to such substances or other environmental
damage caused by our operations or our disposal of waste. In addition, our past and present ownership or
operation of real property (hat is contaminated with hazardous or toxic substances could also result in an
obligation to perform or pay for a clean-up or other damages, regardless of whether we knew of or were
responsible for such contamination. While we have incurred in the past, and expect to incur in the future, capital
and other expenditures related to environmental compliance and remediation matters, we do not anticipaie that
such expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive
position in the future. See “Risk factors—Risks related to our business—We are subject to significant
environmental regulation and environmental compliance expenditures and liabilities.”

Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we had 897 employees across the United States. We have not experienced a shortage of
qualified personnel in the past, and believe that we will be able to attract such employees in the future, None of
our employees is a party to a collective bargaining agreement, and we consider our relations with our employees
to be acceptable.

Seasonality of operating results

Historically, our quarterly sales and operating results have varied significantly, and will likely contiaue to
do so in the future. Seasonality has been caused by product usage, climate changes, promotions, rebates and
announced price increases. Historically, our sales have been higher during the spring and fall months due: to
increased sales of production animal health products. The transportation of production animals during the spring
and fall months drives seasonal product usage. The transportation of production animals occurs during v.irious
times in the animal’s life cycle. The cycle begins with the cow-calf stage where the calf is born and raised to six
to eight months of age. At that point the calf moves to pasture for three to five months. The last movement occurs
when the animal is placed in the feedyard. Movement and climate changes cause stress upon the anirnal, which
increases the risk of disease. Thus, prior to each of these moves, the animal is typically treated for diseaze
prevention. These buying patterns can also be affected by manufacturers” and distributors’” marketing programs
launched during the summer months, particularly in June, which can cause customers to purchase produs:tion
animal health products in advance of actual usage. This kind of early purchasing may reduce the sales in the
months these purchases would have typically been made. In the companion animal health products market, sales
of flea, tick and heartworm products drive sales during the spring and summer months. See “Risk factors—QCur
quarterly operating results may fluctuate due to factors outside of management’s control.” Additionally, while we
accrue rebates as they are earned, our rebates have historically been highest during the quarter endecl
December 31, since some of our manufacturers’ rebate programs are designed to include targets to be achieved
on calendar year sales. We anticipate that this trend with respect to manufacturers’ rebate programs wili continue.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Qur operations and financial results are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could materially
adversely affect our business, financial cendition, results of operations and the trading price of our common
stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business

The outbreak of an infectious disease within an animal population could have a significant adverse effect on
our business and resulfs of operations.

An outbreak of disease affecting animals, such as foot-and-mouth disease, avian flu and bovine spongiform
encephalopathy, commonly referred to as “mad cow disease,” could result in the widespread destruction of
affected animals and consequently result in a reduction in demand for animal health products, such as our
pharmaceuticals, biologicals, and medicated additives, which represent a significant portion of our fiscal 2007
net sales. In addition, outbreaks of or concerns about these or other diseases could create unfavorable publicity
that may have a material adverse effect on consumer demand for meat, dairy and poultry products, and, as a
result, on our customers’ demand for the products we distribute. The outbreak of a disease among the companion
animal population could cause a reduction in the demand for companion animals, which, in turn, could adversely
affect our business.

Qur inability to maintain relationships with manufacturers could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We distribute more than 40,000 products sourced from more than 1,500 manufacturers. We currently do not
manufacture any of our products and are dependent on manufacturers for our supply of products. Our top 10
manufacturers supplied products accounted for approximately 64% of our purchases in fiscal 2007, and one
manufacturer, Pfizer, Inc., or Pfizer, accounted for approximately 24% of our purchases.

Our ability to sustain our gross margins has been, and will continue to be, dependent in part upon our ability
to obtain favorable terms and access to new and existing products from our manufacturers. These terms may be
subject to changes from time to time by manufacturers. Any such changes could adversely affect our net sales
and operating results. We do not have long-term written agreements with our manufacturers. Most of our
agreements with manufacturers are for one-year periods, and in some cases, we do not have any contract with our
manufacturers. Upon expiration, we may not be able to renew our existing agreements on favorable terms, or at
all. If we lose the right to distribute products under such agreements, we may lose access to certain products and
thus lose a competitive advantage. Potential competitors could sell products from manufacturers that we fail to
continue with and erode our market share, The loss of one or more of our large manufacturers, a material
reduction in their supply of products to us or material changes in the payment or pricing terms we obtain from
them could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Some of our manufacturers may decide to compete with us in the future by pursuing or increasing their
efforts in direct marketing and sales of their products. These manufacturers could sell their products at lower
prices and maintain a higher gross margin on their product sales than we can. In this event, veterinarians or
animal owners may elect to purchase animal health products directly from these manufacturers. Increased
competition from any manufacturer of animal health products could significantly reduce our market share and
adversely impact our financial results.

In addition, we may not be able to establish or maintain retationships with key manufacturers in the animal
heatth products industry if we have established relationships with competitors of these key manufacturers. OQur
inability to establish or maintain such relationships could have a material adverse effect on our net sales or gross
prefit.
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An adverse change in manufacturer rebates or our inability to meet applicable rebate targets could ma'erially
and negatively affect our business.

The terms under which we purchase products from many manufacturers of animal health products entitle us
to receive a rebate based on the attainment of various goals, including certain growth goals and sales 1argets.
Rebates have a material impact on our profitability. We cannot assure you as to the amount of rebates that we
will receive in any given year, Factors outside of our control, such as customer preferences or manufacturer
supply issues, can have a material impact on our ability to achieve the growth goals established by our
manufacturers, which may reduce the amount of rebates we receive. Many rebates apply at a rate determined in
the contract {based on the goals set out in the contract) retroactive to the first dollar, so that if we materially miss
a sales estimate it could cause us to reverse prior rebate accruals from prior quarters,

Manufacturers may adversely change the terms of some or all of these rebate programs. Changes to uny
rebate program initiated by our manufacturers may have a material adverse effect on our gross profit and
operating results in any given quarter or year. Manufacturers may reduce or eliminate the amount of rebates
offered under their programs, or increase the growth goals or other conditions we must meet to earn rebates to
levels that we are unable to achieve. The occurrence of any of these events could have an adverse impact on our
profitability.

Our guarterly operating results may fluctuate due to factors outside of management’s control.

Our quarterly operating results may significantly fluctuate, and you should not rely on them as an indication
of our future results. Our future net sales and results of operations may significantly fluctuate due to a
combination of factors, many of which are outside of management’s control. The most important of these factors
include:

+ manufacturer rebates based upon attaining certain growth goals;
* changes in the way manufacturers introduce products to market;
»  the recall of a significant product by one of our manufacturers;
» seasonality;
+ changes in customer demands;
+ changes in climate (e.g., droughts);
+ fluctuations in commodity prices;
+ the impact of general economic trends on our business;
« increases in reserves for bad debts; and
« competition.
For example, our rebates have historically been highest during the quarter ended December 31, since most

of the manufacturers’ rebate programs were designed to include targets to be achieved during the calendar year.
In addition, our net sales have historically been seasonal, with peak sales in our second and fourth fiscal quarters.

We may be unable to reduce operating expenses quickly enough to offset any unexpected shortfail in net
sales. If we have a shortfall in net sales without a corresponding reduction to our expenses, operating results may
suffer. Our operating results for any particular quarter may not be indicative of future operating results. You
shouid not rely on quarter-to-quarter comparisons of results of operations as an indication of our future
performance.
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Loss of key personnel could adversely affect our operations.

We are currently dependent to a significant degree upon the ability and experience of our senior executives,
including President and Chief Executive Officer James Robison. We currently have employment agreements
with these executives that contain non-competition restrictions following termination of employment. The loss of
any of our senior executives could adversely affect our ability to conduct our operations or to achieve growth
through acquisitions.

In addition, we are dependent upon group presidents and our sales representatives to market and sell cur
products and provide our services. These individuals develop relationships with our customers that could be
damaged if these employees are not retained. Any failure on our part to hire, train and retain a sufficient number
of qualified sales representatives would harm our business. We face intense competition for the hiring of these
representatives. Any failure on our part to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified sales
representatives would damage our business. We generally enter into agreements that contain confidentiality and
non-solicitation provisions with our employees.

The loss of products or delays in product availability from one or more manufacturers could substantially
harm our business.

We generally purchase products from our manufacturers through purchase orders rather than through long-
term supply agreements. There can be no assurance, however, that our manufacturers will be able to meet their
obligations under these purchase orders or that we will be able to compel them to do so. We face the following
risks by relying on manufacturers:

»  Some of our manufacturers are subject to ongoing periodic unannounced inspection by regulatory
authorities, including the FDA, the USDA, the EPA, the DEA and other federal and state agencies for
compliance with strictly enforced regulations. We do not have contrel over our manufacturers’
compliance with these regulations and standards. Violations by our manufacturers could potentially
lead to interruptions in our supply that could lead to lost sales to competitive products that are more
readily available.

+ If a purchase order cannot be filled or a certain product line is discontinued or recalled, then we would
not be able to continue to offer our customers the same breadth of products. Our sales and operating
results would likely suffer unless we were able to find an alternate supply of a similar product.

* Agreements may commit us to certain minimum purchase levels or other spending obligations. It is
possible we will not be able to meet such obligations, which would create an increased drain on our
financial resources and liquidity.

+ If market demand for our products increases suddenly, our current manufacturers might not be able to
fulfill our commercial needs, which may result in substantial delays in meeting market demand. If we
generate more demand for a product than one of our manufacturers is capable of handling, we could
experience large backorders and potentially lost sales to competitive products that are more readily
available,

*  We may not be able to control or adequately monitor the quality of products we receive from our
manufacturers. Poor quality products could damage our reputation with our customers or subject us to
potential legal liability to such customers.

Potential problems with manufacturers such as those discussed above could substantially decrease sales of
our products, lead to higher costs and damage our reputation with our customers.
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Qur market is highly competitive. Failure to compete successfully could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The sale and distribution of animal health products is highly competitive, continually evolving and subject
to technological change. We compete directly with both geographically diverse and regional, broad-line animal
health products distributors, as well as companies that specialize in distributing primarily ethical drug products to
veterinarians and over-the-counter drugs directly to animal owners and other end users. Additionally, certain
manufacturers currently compete through the direct marketing of products, and other manufacturers may decide
to do so in the future. We compete with numerous manufacturers and distributors based on customer
relationships, service and delivery, product selection, price and e-commerce capabilities. Some of our
compelitors may have greater financial and other resources than we do. Many of our competitors have
comparable product lines or distribution strategies that directly compete with ours. Our competitors cculd obtain
exclusive rights to distribute certain products, eliminating our ability to distribute those products. Most of our
products are available from several sources, including other distributors and manufacturers, and our customers
typically have relationships with several distributors and manufacturers. Because we generally do not have long-
term contracts with our customers, our customers could buy products from our competitors. If we do not compete
successfully against these organizations, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Our primary competitors, excluding manufacturers, include the following and
other national, regional, local and specialty distributors: Butler Animal Health Supply, LLC, IVESCO, LL.C
(Towa Veterinary Supply), Lextron, Inc., MWI Veterinary Supply, Inc., Professional Veterinary Products, Ltd.
and Webster Veterinary Supply, a division of Patterson Companies, Inc.

Changes in consumer preferences could adversely affect our business.

The demand for production animal health products is heavily dependent upon consumer demand for bHeef,
dairy, poultry and swine. The food industry in general is subject to changing consumer trends, demands and
preferences. Trends within the food industry change often and our failure to anticipate, identify or react to
changes in these trends could lead to, among other things, reduced demand and price reductions for our animal
health products, and could have a material adverse effect on our business. Moreover, even if we do anticipate and
identify these trends, we may be unable to react effectively. For example, changes in consumer diets may
negatively affect consumer demand for beef, dairy, poultry and/or swine, and therefore reduce the demand for
our production animal health products. During previous downturns in these markets, we experienced prolonged
declines in sales and profitability.

Consolidation in the animal health products industry may decrease our net sales and profitability.

Consolidation in the animal health products industry could result in existing competitors increasing their
market share, which could give them greater pricing power, decrease our net sales and profitability and increase the
competition for our customers. Consolidation of the highly fragmented customer base in the animal health products
market could also make it easier for manufacturers to sell their products directly to customers, which would
decrease our net sales and profitability. In addition, as individual customers grow in size through consolidation, the
loss of any one of them would have an increasingly adverse effect on our net sales and profitability. Furtherraore, as
our current customers consolidate, their management teams are more likely to change, which could resutt in changes
in purchase practices and potentially result in the loss of such customers’ business.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition and ability to fulfill our debt
obligations and otherwise adversely impact our business and growth prospects.

As of June 30, 2007, we had outstanding indebtedness under our credit agreements of approximately $118.9
million. Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences to you. For example, it could:

= make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our revolving credit facility, term
loan indebtedness and other current and future indebtedness;
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* increase our vulnerability 1o adverse economic and industry conditions;

» require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of our
indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of cash to fund working capital and capital expenditures
and for other general corporate purposes;

+ restrict us from making strategic acquisitions and exploiting business opportunities;
« place us at a disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we
operate.

Furthermore, all of our indebtedness bears interest at floating rates. We currently hedge exposure for $95.0
million of our indebtedness with interest rate swap agreements that effectively convert our floating rate interest to
fixed rates. For the indebtedness that remains subject to floating rate interest, if these rates were to increase
significantly, our ability to borrow additional funds may be reduced and the risks related to our substantial
indebtedness would intensify.

Qur ability to make payments on and refinance our indebtedness, and to fund our operations, working
capital and capital expenditures, depends on our ability to generate cash in the future. We cannot assure you that
our business will generate sufficient cash flow or that future borrowings will be available to us in an amount
sufficient to enable us to pay amounts due on our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs. If we do not
generate sufficient cash flow, and additional borrowings or refinancings or proceeds of asset sales are not
available to us, we may not have sufficient cash to enable us to meet all of our obligations.

In addition, the agreements governing our indebtedness include certain covenants that, among other things,
restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness, make certain payments, sell assets, enter into certain
transactions with affitiates and create liens. Moreover, certain of these agreements require us to maintain
specified financial ratios. These and other covenants in our current and future agreements may restrict our ability
to fully pursue our business strategies and adversely affect our growth prospects. Our ability to comply with such
covenants may be affected by changes in our operating and financial performance, changes in general business
and economic conditions, adverse regulatory developments or other events beyond our control. The breach of any
of these covenants could result in a default under our indebtedness, which could cause those and other
obligations to become due and payable.

We could face considerable business and financial risk in implementing our acquisition strategy.

As part of our growth strategy, from time to time we consider acquiring complementary businesses. We
regutarly engage in discussions with respect to possible acquisitions. We cannot assure you that we will be
successful in consummating future acquisitions on favorable terms or at all. Future acquisitions could result in
potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities and an increase in
amortization expenses related to intangible assets, which could have a material adverse effect upon our business.

Acquisitions involve a number of risks refating to our ability to integrate an acquired business into our existing
operations. The process of integrating the operations of an acquired business, particularly its personnel, could cause
interruptions to our business. Some of the risks we face include:

« the need to spend substantial operational, financial and management resources in integrating new
businesses, technologies and products, and difficulties management may encounter in integrating the
operations, personnel or systems of acquired businesses;

» retention of key personnel, customers and manufacturers of the acquired business;

¢ the occurrence of a material adverse effect on our existing business relationships with customers or
manufacturers, or both, resulting from future acquisitions or business combinations could lead to a
termination of or otherwise affect our relationships with such customers or manufacturers;
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* impairments of goodwill and other intangible assets; and

* contingent and latent risks associated with the past operations of, and other unanticipated costs. and
problems arising in, an acquired business,

The risks associated with acquisitions could have a material adverse effect upon our business.

If we fail to comply with or become subject to more onerous government regulations, our business could be
adversely affected.

The animal health products industry is subject to changing political and regulatory influences, Both state
and federal government agencies regulate the distribution of certain animal health products and we are subject to
regulation, either directly or indirectly, by the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, the United States
Department of Agriculture, or USDA, the Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, the Drug Enforceraent
Administration, or DEA, the Department of Transportation and state boards of pharmacy as well as comparable
state and foreign agencies. The regulatory stance these agencies take could change, In addition, our
manufacturers are subject to regulation by the FDA, the USDA, the EPA, the DEA as well as other federal and
state agencies, and material changes to the applicable regulations could affect our manufacturers® ability to
manufacture certain products, which could adversely impact our product supply. In addition, some of our
customers may rely, in part, on farm and agricultural subsidy programs. Changes in the regulatory positions that
impact the availability of funding for such programs could have an adverse impact on our customers’ financial
positions, which could lead to decreased sales of our products to them.

We strive to maintain compliance with these laws and regulations. If we are unable to maintain or achieve
compliance with these laws and regulations, we could be subject to substantial fines or other restrictions on our
ability to provide competitive distribution services, which could have an adverse impact on our financial
condition. .

We cannot assure you that existing laws and regulations will not be revised or that new, more restrictive
laws will not be adopted or become applicable to us or the products that we distribute. We cannot assure you that
the manufacturers of products that may become subject to more stringent laws will not try to recover any or all
increased costs of compliance from us by increasing the prices at which we purchase producis from them, or, that
we will be able to recover any such increased prices from our customers. We also cannot assure you that our
business and financial condition will not be materially and adversely affected by future changes in applicable
laws and regulations.

We may be subject to product liability and other claims in the ordinary course of business.

We distribute products that are manufactured exclusively by third parties. As a result, we have no control
over the manufacturing process and face the risk of product liability and other claims in the ordinary <ourse of
business. We maintain insurance policies, and in many cases we have indemnification rights against such claims
from the manufacturers of the products we distribute. However, our ability to recover under insurance or
indemnification arrangements is subject to the terms of such arrangements and the financial viability of the

.insurers and manufacturers. We cannot assure you that our insurance coverage or the manufacturers’ indemnity
will be available or sufficient in any future cases brought against us.

Failure to manage growth could have a material adverse effect on our business,

QOver the past seven years, our net sales have grown by approximately 9.8% annually from $359.1 rrillion in
fiscal 2001 to $629.5 million in fiscal 2007. During that same period we have significantly expanded our
operations in the United States. Our number of full-time employees increased by 211 individuals during 1hat
period.
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Our continued future success depends on, among other things, our ability to implement and/ot maintain:
» sales and marketing programs;
* customer service levels;
« current and new product and service lines;
« manufacturer relationships;
» technological support which equals or exceeds our competitors;
» recruitment and training of new personnel; and

« operational and financial control systems.

Qur ability to successfully offer products and services and implement our business plan requires an effective
planning and management process. We expect that we will need to continue to improve our financial and
managerial controls, reporting systems and procedures and to expand the training of our employees. While we
believe our current systems have sufficient capacity to meet our projected needs, we may need to increase the
capacity of our current systems to meet additional or unforeseen demand. If we are not able to manage our
growth, our customer service quality could deteriorate, which could result in decreased sales or profitability.
Also, the cost of our operations could increase faster than growth in our net sales, negatively impacting our
profitability.

Operational problems at our central replenishment and distribution facility or any of our distribution
locations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Approximately 56% of the dollar volume of our product sales flow through our central replenishment and
distribution facility in Memphis, Tennessee. Unforeseen or recurring operational problems at this facility or any
of our other distribution facilities could impair or disrupt our ability to deliver our products to our customers in a
timely manner, and could have a material adverse effect upon our customer relationships, business, financial
condition and results of operations. Although we do carry property insurance, which may protect us in the event
of certain inventory losses, we do not carry business interruption insurance. Therefore, we will not be
compensated for certain losses that may occur as a result of a major disruption to our facilities. Disruptions at any
of our facilities could be caused by:

* mainienance outages;

» prolonged power failures or reductions;

= disruptions in the transportation infrastructure, including railroad tracks, bridges, tunnels or roads;
+ fires, floods, earthquakes or other catastrophic disasters;

« labor difficulties; or

+ other operational problems.

If third parties claim that we infringe upon their intellectual property rights, our operating profits could be
adversely affected.

We face the risk of claims that we have infringed third parties’ intellectual property rights, including
trademarks, trade dress, and patents. Third parties may claim that our proprietary branded products infringe their
trademarks and/or trade dress; that our consultative services infringe a patented machine, process, or business
method; and/or that our products infringe such third parties’ patented animal health products. We have not
conducted an independent review of trademarks or patents issued to third parties. The large number of
trademarks and patents, the rapid rate of new trademark and patent issuances, the complexities of the technology
involved in patents and uncertainty of litigation increase the risk of business assets and management’s attention
being diverted to intellectual property litigation.
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Any claims of patent or other intellectual property infringement, even those without merit, could:
* be expensive and time consuming to defend;

* cause us to cease making, licensing or using products or services that incorporate the challenged
intellectual property;

* require us to redesign, reengineer, or rebrand our products or packaging, if feasible;

+ divert management’s attention and resources; or !

* require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements in order to obtain the right to use a third party’s
intellectual property.

Any royalty or licensing agreements, if required, may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. A
successful ctaim of infringement against us could result in our being required to pay significant damages, enter
into costly license or royalty agreements, or stop the sale of certain products, any of which could have a negative
impact on our operating profits and harm our future prospects.

Qur intellectual property rights may be inadegquate to protect our business.

We attempt to protect our intellectual property rights through a combination of patent, trademarl, copyright
and trade secret laws, as well as licensing agreements and third-party nondisclosure and assignment agrecments.
Qur failure to obtain or maintain adequate protection of our intellectual property rights for any reasor: could have
a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely on our trademarks, trade names, and brand names to distinguish our proprietary branded products
and services from the products and services of our competitors, and have registered or applied to register many of
these trademarks. We cannot assure you that our trademark applications will be approved. Third parties may also
oppose our trademark applications, or otherwise challenge our use of the trademarks. In the event that our
trademarks are successfully challenged, we could be forced to rebrand our proprietary branded produets und
services, which could result in loss of brand recognition, and could require us to devote resources to advertise
and market new brands. Further, we cannot assure you that competitors will not infringe upon our trademarks, or
that we will have adequate resources to enforce our trademarks.

We also rely on unpatented proprietary technology. It is possible that others will independently cevelop the
same or similar technology or otherwise obtain access to our unpatented technology. To protect cur trade secrets
and other proprietary information, we require employees, consultants, advisors and collaborators to enter into
confidentiality agreements. We cannot assure you that these agreements will provide meaningful protection for
our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use,
misappropriation or disclosure of such trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information.

If we are unable to maintain the proprietary nature of our technologies, we could be materially adversely
affected.

The patent we own could be challenged, invalidated or circumvented by others and may not be of sufficient
scope or strength to provide us with any meaningful protection or commercial advantage, Further, we cannot
assure you that competitors will not infringe upon our patent, or that we will have adequate resources to enforce
our patent.

If our proprietary branded products infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, we may be required
to indemnify our customers for any damages they suffer.

Third parties may assert infringement claims against our customers. These claims may require us. fo :nitiate
or defend protracted and costly litigation on behalf of our customers, regardless of the merits of these claims. If
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any of these claims succeed, we may be forced to pay damages on behalf of our customers or may be required to
obtain licenses for the products they use. If we cannot obtain all necessary licenses on commercially reasonable
terms, our customers may be forced to stop using our products.

We are subject to significant environmental regulation and environmental compliance expenditures and
liabilities.

We are subject to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations concerning, among other things, air
and wastewater discharges, the generation, handling, storage, transportation and disposal of pesticides, hazardous
waste and toxic substances. Pursuant to some of these laws and regulations, we are required to obtain permits
from governmental authorities for certain operations. We incur costs to comply with such laws, regulations and
permits, and we cannot assure you that we have been or will be at all times in complete compliance with such
laws, regulations and permits, If we violate or fail to comply with these laws, regulations or permits, we could be
fined or otherwise sanctioned by regulators. We could also be responsible for costs incurred relating to
contamination at our third party waste disposal sites or relating to damages incurred as a result of human
exposure to such substances or other environmental damage caused by our operations or our disposal of waste. In
addition, our past and present ownership or operation of real property that is contaminated with hazardous or
toxic substances could also result in an obligation to perform or pay for a clean-up or other damages, regardless
of whether we knew of or were responsible for such contamination.

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to
become more stringent over time. We cannot assure you that our costs and liabilities relating to these current and
future laws will not adversely affect our business or profitability.

Performance problems with our information systems could damage our business.

We currently process all customer transactions and data at our facilities in Westlake, Texas. Although we
have safeguards for emergencies, including, without limitation, back-up systems, the occurrence of a major
catastrophic event or other system failure at any of our distribution facilities could interrupt data processing or
result in the loss of stored data. This may result in the loss of customers or a reduction in demand for our
services. Only some of our systems are fully redundant and we do not carry business interruption insurance. If a
disruption occurs, our profitability and results of operations could suffer. Qur information systems are dependent
on third party software, global communications providers, telephone systems and other aspects of technology and
Internet infrastructure that are susceptible to failure. While we have implemented security measures and some
redundant systems, our customer satisfaction and our business could be harmed if we or our manufacturers
experience any system delays, failures, loss of data, outages, computer viruses, break-ins or similar disruptions.

We may be required to record a charge to earnings if our goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired.

Qur balance sheet includes goodwill and other intangible assets. As of June 30, 2007, such amounts totaled
approximately $137.1 million. A significant decline in the fair value of the Company could cause impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets. Under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, if
tmpairment of our goodwill or other intangible assets is determined, we will be required 1o record a charge to
earnings in the period of such determination.

Risks related to the common stock and our capital structure

There is a limited history of a trading market for our common stock, and the market price of our common
stock may be highly volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance. As a result, our
stockholders could lose a significant part of their investment.

There has only been a public market for our common stock since the completion of our initial public
offering in January 2007. The trading market in our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile.
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Broad market and industry conditions and trends may cause fluctuations in the market price of our common
stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. An active trading market for shares of our commoa stock
may not be sustained on a consistent basis. The public trading price for our common stock will be affected by a
number of factors, inctuding:

* depth and liquidity of the market for our common stock;

« investor perception of our business;

» profit margins in the animal health products industry generally;

+ reported progress of our business, relative to investor expectations;

* changes in earnings estimates, investors’ perceptions, recommendations by securities analysts or our
failure to achieve analysts’ earning estimates;

* quarterly variations in our or our competitors’ results of operations;

* general market conditions and other factors unrelated to our operating performance or the operating
performance of our competitors;

« future sales of our common stock;

= announcements by us, or our competitors, of acquisitions, significant contracts, or commercial
relationships;

* commencement of, or involvement in, litigation,

* any major change in our board of directors or management;

+ changes in governmental regulations or in the status of our regulatory approvals;
* alack of, limited, or negative industry or security analyst coverage;

* general economic and market conditions; and

« the other factors described elsewhere in these “Risk Factors.”

As a result of these factors, our stockholders may not be able to resell their shares at, or above, their purchase
price. In addition, the stock market in general, and the Nasdaq Global Market in particular, have experienzed
substantial price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of particular companies affected. These broad market and industry factors may materially harm the
market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating performance. In the past, following periods of
volatility in the market price of certain companies’ securities, securities class-action litigation has been instituted
against these companies. Such litigation, if instituted against us, could adversely affect our business and rzsults
of operations.

Future sales of our shares could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We have only been a public company since January 2007. For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, the
average daily trading volume of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market has been less than 107,000
shares. Any future sale by us or our current stockholders of our common stock in the public market, or the
perception that sales could occur, could adversely affect the prevailing market price for our common stocik.

Substantially all of the holders of our common stock who acquired their shares prior to our initial public
offering have rights, subject to some limited conditions, to demand that we file a registration statement on their
behalf to register their shares or that we include their shares in a registration statement that we file on our behalf
or on behalf of other stockholders. If such demand rights are exercised pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the registration rights agreement and we are required to file an additional registration statement, we will incur
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significant expenses in connection with the filing of such registration statement. Additionally, the filing of an
additional registration statement at the request of the stockholders may divert the attention of our senior
management from our business operations.

Our directors and certain significant stockholders exercise significant control over us.

Our directors and significant stockholders, including investment funds affiliated with Charlesbank Capital
Partners LL.C, or Charlesbank, and investment funds associated with Waddell & Reed, Inc., collectively control
approximately 38% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders, if they act together, are
able to influence our management and affairs and all matters requiring stockholder approval in ways that may not
align with your interest as a stockholder, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate
transactions. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control
of us even if beneficial to you as a stockholder and might affect the market price of our common stock.

We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available to us. Issuances of our equity
securities to provide this capital may dilute your ownership in us.

We may need to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings in order to:
+ take advantage of expansion opportunities;
¢ acquire complementary businesses or technologies;
» develop new services and products; or
¢ respond to competitive pressures.
Any additional capital raised through the issuance of our equity securities may dilute your percentage
ownership interest in us. Furthermore, any additional financing we may need may not be available on terms

favorable to us or at all. The unavailability of needed financing could adversely affect our ability to execute our
growth strategy.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our common stock, and therefore you will likely not receive
any return on your investment without selling your shares.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings for funding the growth of our business and repayment of
existing indebtedness, and therefore, we do not currently anticipate declaring or paying cash dividends on our
common stock. In addition, our credit agreements restrict us from paying such dividends.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may deter third parties from acquiring us.

Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws contain provisions that may make the acquisition of us more
difficult without the approval of our board of directors, including the following:

» our board of directors is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms;
* only our board of directors may call special meetings of our stockholders;
= our stackholders may take action only at a meeting of our stockholders and not by written consent;

* we have authorized undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and shares of
which may be issued without stockholder approval;

+ stockholder approval of amendments of our certificate of incorporation or by-laws require a vote of
75% of our outstanding shares;

* vacancies on the board of directors may be filled only by the directors;
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* our directors may be removed only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of 75% of the votes
that all stockholders would be entitled to cast in the election of directors; and

* we require advance notice for stockholder proposals.

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in conirol
of us. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other
stockholders to elect directors of your choosing and cause us to take other corporate actions that you desire.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may delay, defer or prevent a change in control that
our stockholders might consider to be in their best interests.

We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law which, subject 1o certain
exceptions, prohibits “business combinations” between a Delaware corporation and an “interested stockhulder,”
which is generally defined as a stockholder who becomes a beneficial owner of 15% or more of a Delaware
corporation’s voting stock, for a three-year period following the date that such stockholder became an intcrested
stockholder absent prior approval of our board of directors. Section 203 could have the effect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a change in control that our stockholders might consider to be in their best interesis.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not Applicable.

Item 2.  Properties.

We conduct our operations out of 75 locations throughout the United States, two affiliated locations in
Canada, and one affiliated location in Taiwan. Properties include distribution locations, retajl locations, a central
replenishment and distribution center and our corporate headquarters. Our distribution locations range in size
from 4,000 to 69,000 square feet. Our central replenishment and distribution facility in Memphis, Tennessee, is
comprised of two buildings totaling 89,000 square feet under leases that expire in January 2012 and June 2014
respectively. Our west coast replenishment and distribution facility is located in Visalia, California, where we
lease approximately 68,000 square feet under a lease that expires in December 2016. Qur corporate headquarters
are located in the Dallas/Font Worth metropolitan area, where we lease approximately 153,000 square feet of
commercial space under a lease that expires in August 2013. We own 29 locations, with the remainder leased
under varying lease terms, ranging in maturities from two to ten years. Qur facilities are in acceptable opeiating
condition and generally adequate for current needs. We do not anticipate significant difficulty in obtaining lease
renewals or alternate space as needed, although obtaining renewals or alternate space on acceptable terms cannot
be assured.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. We are not curcently
involved in any outstanding litigation that we believe, individually or in the aggregate, will have a matenal
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the year covered by
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART 1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockhelder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities,

Market Information

As of June 30, 2007, there were approximately 129 holders of record. We completed our initial public
offering in January 2007, prior to that time there was no public market for our common stock.

Our common stock has been quoted, as reported by Nasdag, at a high of $15.74 and a low of $10.48 per
share during the period of January 30, 2007 to August 31, 2007, is listed and traded on the Nasdaq Global Market
under the symbol AHIL.

The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock since the closing
of our initial public offering on February 5, 2007, as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market, for the period from
January 30, 2007 to August 31, 2007. The quotations represent interdealer quotations, without adjustments for
retail mark ups, mark downs, or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low
FISCAL 2007
Third Quarter {commencing January 30,2007) ....... .. ... ... ... ... ..... $13.38  $11.41
Fourth Quarmer . .. ..ottt e e $1488 3$11.58
FISCAL 2008
First Quarter (through August 31,2007y .. ... ... .. ... i, $15.74 $1048
Dividends

Our board of directors has discretion in determining whether to declare or pay dividends, which will depend
upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and such other factors as the board of
directors deems relevant. We currently anticipate that we will retain future earnings for the development,
operation and expansion of our business. Moreover, our credit agreements relating to our revolving credit facility
and first lien term loan impose restrictions on our ability to declare and pay dividends. See “Risk factors—Risks
related to the common stock, the offering and our capital structure—We do not currently intend to pay dividends
on our common stock, and therefore you will likely not receive any return on your investment without selling
your shares.”

In September 2006, we paid an aggregate dividend of approximately $53.3 million to the holders of shares
of our preferred stock and an aggregate dividend of approximately $1.2 million to the holders of shares of our
common stock. A portion of the dividend on the preferred stock reduced the aggregate liquidation amount that
was due to holders of preferred stock upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, or, at the
election of at least a majority of the shares of preferred stock, upon the closing of an extraordinary transaction,
These dividends to our stockholders were special dividends and we do not currently anticipate that we will
declare any dividends on our commeon stock in the future.

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Please see Part III for information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity
compensation plans,

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any unregistered securities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On January 30, 2007, our registration statement on Form §-1 (Registration No. 333-137656) was declared
effective for our initial public offering, pursuant to which we offered and sold 11,800,000 shares of cominon
stock and received net proceeds of approximately $90.3 million. Of the net proceeds from our initial public
offering (i} $40.0 million was used to repay amounts owed under our $40.0 million second lien term loan, which
had a stated interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 8.25% per annum and which was scheduled to mature on June 30,
2011 and (ii) $45.0 million was used to repay amounts owed under our $45.0 million second lien term loan,
which had a stated interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 7.0% per annum and which was scheduled to mature on
September 25, 2012, The remaining net proceeds of approximately $5.3 million were used during the three
month period ended March 31, 2007 for working capital and general corporate purposes.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

All references to “Predecessor” refer to Walco Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries for all periods prior to the
June 30, 2005 acquisition of Walco Holdings, Inc., which operated under a different ownership and capital
structure.

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualificd by
reference to, our consolidated financial staterents and notes to those consolidated financial statements, and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” included els:where
in this annual report. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006 and
20017, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2006 and 2007, are derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this annual report. The consolidated statement
of operations data for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2004, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of
June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005, are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements, which are not
included in this annual report. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expectec. for
any future period.
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Consolidated statement of operations data:

(in thousands, except per share data and
number of representatives)

Net sales
Direct cost of products sold

Grossprofit ....... ... ... i il
Selling, general, and administrative expenses(1) . . .
Acquisition costs(2)
Depreciation and amortization(3} ...............

Operating income
Other income (expense)
Interestexpense . . ... ... ... i iieia
Otherincome . . ....... ... ..o iiiiinen

Income before incometaxes ...................
Incometaxexpense . .. ......... .. ... . ...,

Year ended June 30,
Predecessor Successor
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$450,611 $502,686 $535,693 | $571,192 $629,534

366,464 408,105 436,955 459,173 507,997

84,147 94,581 98,738 112,019 121,537

66,047 70,238 72,954 81,428 88,117

262 496 7,759 — 6

3,570 3,156 3,149 6,414 6,504

14,268 20,691 14,876 24,177 26,910
(5,758) {4,984) (5071 (13,726) (18,307}

678 982 672 478 582

9,188 16,689 10,477 10,929 9,185
(3.732) (6,507) (3,203 (3,542) (3,957

Net income

Per share data:

Earnings (loss) per common share
Basic
Common
Class A
ClassL ...
ClassW ................ e

Diluted
Common
Class A
Class L
Class W L i it

Shares used in computing earnings per share:
Basic
Common
Class A
ClassL .. .. .. e
Class W .. .. .. e

Diluted
Common
Class A
Class L .. ... i i i
Class W ... . e

Consolidated balance sheet data:
Totalassets ............. ... ... .. ... ......
Total current and long-term debt

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)
Cash dividend declared per common share

Other data:
Adjusted EBITDA(M) . ..o,
Field sales representatives(5)

$ 5456 $ 10,182 $ 7274

$ 7387 § 5228

$ 258
$ 258
$ 258
$ 256
$ 256
$ 256
1,862
183
72
1,862
199
72
$164,415
81,389
20,663
$ —
$ 18,778
204
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4.80
4.80

@ &7 5

$ 409
$ 409
$ 409

1,869
182
72

2,221
197
72

$176,202
73,766
30,612

$ —_—

$ 25,325
195

4.80

3.38
3.38
3.38

@ o8 o

282
2.82
2.82

@ &5 B

1,900
182
72

2,307
197
72

$197,449
61,633
38,087

3 26,456
220

$ 043 § (13.01)

$ 043 % (13.01)

2,084 11,329

2,084

11,329

$294,337 $330,034

137,634 118,886
(3,179) 86,115
$§8 — & 052

$ 31,069 $ 34,002
218 238
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Selling, general, and administrative expenses include salary, wages, commissions, and related benef:is of
approximately $31,276, $38,464, $39,022, $43,958, and $47,619 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004,
2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively. Also includes management and advisory services fees paid to Bain
Capital Partners, V, L.P. totaling $750 for each fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005,
respectively. Also includes management and advisory service fees and reimbursement of out-of-pociet
expenses paid to Charlesbank totaling $575, $664, and $146 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 200¢, and
2007, respectively, Refer to note 10 of our consolidated financial statements included in this Report on
Form 10-K for further information.

$7,759 and $496 represent costs incurred in connection with the sale of Predecessor on June 30, 2005, Refer
to note 3 of our consolidated financial statements included in this Report on Form 10-K for further
information. $262 and $6 represent costs of failed acquisitions.

Depreciation expense includes the depreciation of property, plant and equipment and other assets and was
$3.261, $3,111, $3,114, $3,039, and $3,129 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, and 2007,
respectively.

Adjusted EBITDA represents net income before interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and
amortization, and acquisition costs. We present adjusted EBITDA as a supplemental performance measure
because we believe it facilitates operating performance comparisons from period to period and company to
company by backing out potential differences caused by variations in capital structures (affecting intzrest
expense), tax positions (such as the impact on periods or companies of changes in effective tax rates or net
operating losses), the age and book depreciation of fixed assets (affecting relative depreciation expense), the
impact of purchase accounting and SFAS No, 142 (affecting depreciation and amortization expense) and the
impact of non-recurring acquisition costs. Because adjusted EBITDA facilitates internal comparisons of our
historical financial position and operating performance on a more consistent basis, we also use adjusted
EBITDA in measuring our performance relative to that of our competitors and in evalvating acquisition
opportunities. Adjusted EBITDA is not 2 measurement of our financial performance under generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP, and should not be considered as an
alternative to net income, operating income or any other performance measures derived in accordance with
GAAP or as an alternative to cash flow from operating activities as a measure of our profitability or
liquidity. We understand that although adjusted EBITDA is frequently used by securities analysts, lenders
and others in their evaluation of companies, our calculation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to
other similarly titled measures of other companies. EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you
should not consider it in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP.
Some of these limitations are:

»  Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures, or future requirements, for capital
expenditures or contractual commitments;

+  Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

* Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements nec=ssary
to service interest or principal payments, on our debts;

* Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and
amortized will often have to be replaced in the future, and adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any cash
requirements for such replacements; and

»  Other companies in our industry may calculate adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, limiting its
usefulness as a comparalive measure.
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The following table reconciles adjusted EBITDA to net income as determined in accordance with GAAP for
the periods indicated:

Year ended June 30,
Predecessor Successor
gn_t_lwnda;) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Netincome . .....covvvevivinenenn., $ 5456 §10,182 $ 7274 $ 7.387 $ 5228
Interestexpense . ..............on... 5,758 4,984 5,071 13,726 18,307
Income tax expense ., ............... 3,732 6,507 3,203 3,542 3,957
Depreciation and amortization ........ 3,570 3,156 3,149 6,414 6,504
Acquisitioncosts ................... 262 496 7,759 — 6
Adjusted EBITDA ................. $18,778  $25,325 $26,456 $31,069  $34,002

Number of sales representatives is measured at the end of the period. Field sales representatives typically
service our customers in their surrounding geographical area on a weekly basis.
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Item7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements end notes
to those consolidated financial statements, included elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K. In addition 10
historical information, this discussion contains forward-looking statements that invelve risks, uncertainhes and
assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materiaily from our expectations. Factors that could cause
such differences include those described in “Risk factors™ and elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

Based upon net sales, we are one of the largest distributors of animal health products in the United States.
We sell more than 40,000 products sourced from over 1,500 manufacturers to over 65,000 customers, as well as
provide consultative services to our customers in the highly fragmented animal health products indusiry.
Products we distribute include pharmaceuticals, vaccines, parasiticides, diagnostics, capital equipment, sinitizers,
devices and supplies. Our principal customers are veterinarians, production animal operators and animal health
product retailers.

Our growth has primarily been derived from internal growth initiatives supported by select strategic
acquisitions. Key factors and trends that have affected and we believe will continue to affect our operatinz results
include:

*  Overall growth in the dairy industry. According to the United States Department of Agriculture
{USDA) over the last several years the demand for dairy products has increased, As a result, the
demand for production animal health products in the dairy market has increased. We have capitalized
on this demand with increased sales of our dairy related production animal health products. We
anticipate that this trend of growth in the dairy market will continue in the future and that we w:ll be
able to fulfill the corresponding demand for related production animal health products, resulting in
increased sales and profitability.

*  Consolidation by our customers in the dairy industry. The dairy market is undergoing significant
consolidation resulting in a shift towards larger operations. According to the USDA dairies with 500 or
more cattle currently account for 45% of the milk producing cow population in the United States, as
compared to 24% in 1997. Over the last several years we have leveraged our relationships with larger
dairies and our national footprint to gain market share in the dairy related production animal heulth
products market. We anticipate that this trend of dairy consolidation will continue and we will seek to
continue to gain market share.

*  Qur ability to negotiate favorable terms from our manufacturers. Based upon net sales, we are one of
the largest distributors in the preduction animal health products market. We believe that due to our
market position and local market share, we have been able to negotiate, in many instances, better prices
and more favorable terms, including rebates and sales and placement incentives, from our
manufacturers than our competitors.

* Increased focus on companion animal customers. According to Sundale Research, over the last several
years the market for companion animal health products has increased to approximatety $3.1 billion. We
believe this growth has been and will continue to be driven by the following trends:

* widespread ownership of companion animals;

* increased importance of companion animals in households;

* growing awareness of companion animal health and wellness;

* technology migration from the human life science product sector into the practice of veterinary
medicine;
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* increased marketing programs sponsored by large pharmaceutical and companion animal nutrition
companies; and

+ prolonged companion animal life spans creating demand for geriatric companion animal care
products.

Over the past three years we have begun to penetrate the urban and suburban veterinarian markets. We
believe that by leveraging our centralized procurement and inventory management model we are well
positioned to develop a leading cost-to-serve position in the companion animal health products market and
to continue to capture market share, resulting in increased sales and profitability. While we believe we are a
leader in the companion animal health product market, the market is highly fragmented with numerous
national, regional and local distributors, and a few of our competitors with bigger market share have greater
financial and other resources than we do.

s Changes in consumer preferences. The demand for production animal health preducts is heavily
dependent upon consumer demand for beef, dairy, poultry and swine. The food industry in general is
subject to changing consumer trends, demands and preferences. For example, changes in consumer
diets may negatively affect consumer demand for beef, dairy, poultry or swine, and therefore reduce
the demand for our production animal health products. During the previous downturns in these
markets, we experienced declines in sales and profitability.

We generate revenue from our customers in three ways. Over 99% of our revenue is generated through
“buy/sell” transactions. The remainder comes from consignment and agency transactions. In the “buy/sell”
transactions, we take title to inventory from our manufacturers. We sell products to customers and invoice them.
“Buy/sell” transactions are advantageous to us over other sales methods because we take title to the inventory
and are able to promote these products on behalf of manufacturers and effectively manage the pricing and
distribution of these products. For our consignment sales, we do not take title to the product, but we do stock and
ship product to and invoice the customer. For our agency sales, we transmit orders from our customers to our
manufacturers. The manufacturer ships the product directly to our customers and compensates us with a
commission payment for handling the order from our customer and providing customer service. Manufacturers
may occasionally switch between the “buy/sell” and agency methods for particular products. Currently and for
the past three fiscal years, only one product with material sales has required treatment as a consignment sale.

Contracts with manufacturers are generally negotiated annually on a calendar year basis. Sales growth goals
are negotiated and used to determine rebate achievement. Manufacturer rebates are classified in our
accompanying consolidated statements of operations as a reduction of direct cost of products sold. Manufacturer
rebates that are based on quarterly or annual goals have sales performance tracked continually versus the goal
and rebate income adjusted accordingly.

Results of operations

The following table summarizes historical results of operations for the period from July 1, 2004 to June 30,
2007, on an actual basis and as a percentage of net sales.

All references to “Predecessor” refer to Walco Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries for all periods prior to the
June 30, 2005 acquisition of Walco Holdings, Inc., which operated under a different ownership and capital
structure, -

Qur gross profit may not be comparable to those of other entities, since some entities include all of the costs
related to their distribution network in cost of goods sold and others, like us, exclude a portion of these costs
from direct cost of products sold and include them instead in selling, general, and administrative expenses, and
salaries, wages, commissions, and related benefits.
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Summary consolidated results of operations table

Predecessor Successor

(dollars in thousands) 2005 2006 2007
Nt SAlES ittt et e s e e e e $535,693 | $571,192 $629,534
Direct costof productssold . ....... ... ... ... ... . ... 436,955 459,173 507,997
Gross PrOfit . .ot e i e e e e 98,738 112,019 121,537
Selling, general, and administrative expenses (includes salary, wages,

commission, and related benefits) ................. ... ... . ..., 72,954 81,428 88,117
ACqUisition COSES ..., ... e 7,759 —_ 6
Depreciation and amortization . ........ ... ... .. ... . ... 3,149 6,414 6,504
Operating INCOME . .. ... ...ttt iainnansran. e 14,876 24,177 26,910
Other income (expense):
INteresSt BXPENSE . . . oottt e e (3,071 (13,726) (18,307)
01 17 (Lot 3 11 672 478 582
Income before income taxes . .......... ... i e 10,477 10,929 9,185
INCOME EAX EXPEISE - .. ..\ (3,203) (3,542) (3,957)
11 T o 12 $ 7,274 $ 7387 & 5228
Nt Sales ... ittt it e e e 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Directcostof productssold . .......... .. i 81.6% 80.4% 20.7%
Gross Profil . ... oo e e 18.4% 19.6% 19.3%
Selling, general, and administrative {(includes salary, wages, commission,

and related benefits) ... ... . .. i e 13.6% 14.3% 14.0%
ACqUISION COSES . ..\ttt e it e i e 1.4% 0.0% 0.0%
Depreciation and amortization ...............c.cciiiiiiiinnnn. 0.6% 1.1% 1.0%
OperalinZ iNCOME . ... .. .ttt it iina e aaes 2.8% 4.2% 4.3%
Other income (expense}
Interest EXPemsSE . . ..ottt e e -0.9% -2.4% -2.9%
OHEr INCOME .« .« o v v e ettt e e e e e e e e e et 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Income before INCOME tAXES .. ... oot ittt i e nnnns 2.0% 1.9% 1.5%
INCOME tAX EXPEISE . .« oottt ettt et e aa e e e -0.6% -0.6% -0.7%
= T (T ¢ 11 1.4% 1.5% 0.8%

Fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006

Net sales. Net sales increased $58.3 million, or 10.2%, to $629.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2007,
from $571.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2006. The increase in net sales was primarily attributable to the
addition of new customers, continued expansion into new territories, increased sales to existing customers, and
the acquisitions of six companies during the year ended June 30, 2007. The number of field sales reprasentatives
increased to 238 as of June 30, 2007, from 218 as of June 30, 2006, The increase in field sales representatives

allowed the Company to expand into additional territories and attract new customers,
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Gross profit. Gross profit increased $9.5 million, or 8.5%, to $121.5 million for the year ended June 30,
2007, from $112.0 million for the vear ended June 30, 2006. Gross profit as a percentage of sales was 19.3% for
the year ended June 30, 2007, compared to 19.6% for the year ended June 30, 2006. The Company’s gross profit
dollars increased as a result of sales growth but was slightly offset by an unfavorable shift in product mix to
lower gross margin products and freight expense driven by an increase in fuel costs.

Selling, gencral, and administrative expenses. Selling, general, and administrative expenses, excluding
depreciation and amortization, increased $6.7 million, or 8.2%, to $88.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2007,
from $81.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2006, An increase in variable selling and administrative expenses
was due to increased sales volume combined with $2.8 million of non-recurring legal expenses related to the
settlement of a dispute with a vendor and $0.2 million of stock option expenses that represent the compensation
expense recognized from the issuance of incentive stock options in January 2007 through June 30, 2007. Even
with these increases, the fixed nature of certain expenses drove a decrease in selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percent of sales from 14.3% for year ended June 30, 2006, to 14.0% for the year ended June 30,
2007.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization remained relatively constant at $6.5 million
for the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to $6.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2006.

Other expenses. Other expenses increased $4.5 million, or 33.8%, to $17.7 million for the year ended
June 30, 2007, from $13.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2006. The increase in other expenses was due to an
increase in interest expense of $4.6 million to $18.3 million in the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to
$13.7 mitlion in the year ended June 30, 2006. This increase was due to $2.4 million of debt issue cost write-offs
and early extinguishment penalties resulting from the pay off of the Second Lien Notes totaling $85.0 million,
and additional debt primarily resulting from the September 2006 debt refinancing and higher interest rates.

Income tax expenses. Income tax expense increased $0.4 million or 11.7%, to $3.9 million for the year
ended June 30, 2007, from $3.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2006. The effective tax rate was 43.1% and
32.4% for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. This increase in the effective tax rate was
attributable to a combination of factors including: 1) a reduction of deferred tax habilities driven by the lowering
of a state tax in the prior year that reduced the prior year’s tax rate, 2) a change in our blended state tax rate in
2007, and 3) permanent differences related to stock option and other expenses.

Fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005

Net sales. Net sales increased $35.5 million, or 6.6%, to $571.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2006, from $535.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This increase in net sales was primarily
attributable to new products and our expansion into new territories offset by the impact of increased sales of
approximately $6 million to our customers in late 2005 in advance of a price increase. We believe net sales
attributable to new products were approximately $34.4 million and net sales attributable to the expansion of our
products into new territories were approximately $5.5 million. The number of field sales representatives
decreased to 218 as of June 30, 2006 from 220 as of June 30, 2005, while the number of inside sales
representatives increased to 69 as of June 30, 2006 from 61 as of June 30, 2005. This increase in inside sales
representatives allowed us to better utilize and support our field sales representatives in order to expand into
additional territories and extend our geographic reach.

Gross profit. Gross profit increased by $13.3 million, or 13.5%, to $112.0 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, from $98.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, Gross profit as a percentage of net
sales was 19.6% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compared to 18.4% in the prior year. Our gross profit
benefited by approximately $6.5 million from an increase in net sales and by approximately $6.0 million in
manufacturer rebates, which were based on the attainment of pre-specified growth goals.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding
depreciation and amertization, increased by $8.4 million, or 11.6%, to $81.4 million for the fiscal year ended
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June 30, 2006, from $73.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This primarily resulted from an
increase in variable expenses related to sales volume totaling $3.4 million, a non-recurring, non-cash reserve for
potential litigation of $2.5 million, an increase in salaries and wages totaling $2.4 million and an increase: in fuel
costs of $1.1 million. The variable expenses which increased due to sales volume were predominately
commissions. Salaries and wages were affected by merit adjustments of $0.9 million and additions of $1.0
million, primarily in the companion animal health products area,

Acquisition costs. There were no acquisition costs in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Acquisition costs
totaled $7.8 million in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, which primarily included legal costs and tranzaction
bonuses associated with the acquisition of the Company by Charlesbank, which occurred on June 30, 2005.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $3.3 million, or 103.7%, to
$6.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, from $3.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.
The increase resulted from the amortization of intangible assets created in the June 30, 2005 acquisition of the
Company by Charlesbank.

Other expenses. Other expenses increased $8.8 million, or 201.2%, to $13.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, from $4.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The increase in other expenses 'was due
to an increase in interest expense of $8.7 million to $13.7 million in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, as
compared to $5.1 million in the prior year. This increase resulted from $85.9 million of additional debt incurred
in the June 30, 2005 acquisition of the Company.

Income tax expenses. Income tax expense increased $0.3 million, or 10.6%, to $3.5 million for the fiscal
year'ended June 30, 2006, from $3.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The effective tax: rate was
32.4% and 30.6% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in our effzctive
tax rate was attributable to the non-deductible amortization of intangible assets, beginning on July 1, 20035.

Seasonality of operating resulis

Historically, our quarterly sales and operating results have varied significantly, and will likely contirnue to
do so in the future. Seasonality has been caused by product usage, climate changes, promotions, rebates and
announced price increases. Historically, sales have been higher during the spring and fall months due to
increased sales of production animal health products. The transportation of production animals during the spring
and fall months drives seasonal product usage. The transportation of production animals occurs during various
times in the animal’s life cycle. The cycle begins with the cow-calf stage where the calf is born and raised to six
to eight months of age. At that point the calf moves to pasture for three to five months. The last movement occurs
when the animal is placed in the feedyard. Movement and climate changes cause stress upon the animal, which
increases the risk of disease. Thus, prior to each of these moves, the animal is typically treated for disease
prevention. These buying patierns can also be affected by manufacturers’ and distributors’ marketing projrams
launched during the summer months, particularly in June, which can cause customers to purchase production
animal health products in advance of actual usage. This kind of early purchasing may reduce the sales in the
months these purchases would have typically been made. In the companion animal health products market, sales
of flea, tick and heartworm products drive sales during the spring and summer months. See “Risk factors-—Our
quarterly operating results may fluctuate due to factors cutside of management’s control.” Additionally, vwhile we
accrue rebates as they are earned, our rebates have historically been highest during the quarter ended
December 31, since some of our manufacturers’ rebate programs are designed to include targets to be achieved
on calendar year sales. We anticipate that this trend with respect to manufacturers’ rebate programs will continue.

For the reasons and factors discussed above, our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly.
Accordingly, results for any one quarter are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any other
quarter or for any year, and our sales for any particular future period may decrease. In the future, operatinz
results may fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors. If this occurs, the price of our stock
would likely decrease.

34




Consolidated statements of operations for the quarter ended (unaudited)

September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30,

W 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2007 2007
Netsales ........ $127,740  $156,763 $139,843 $146,846 $145702  $170,279 $153,874 $159.679
Direct cost of

products sold . . . 102,973 121,842 114,111 120,247 118,648 133,028 124,828 131,493
Gross profit ...... 24,767 34,921 25,732 26,599 27,054 37,251 29,046 28,186
Selling, general,

and

administrative

expenses?” .. ... 18,918 22,777 19,258 20,475 20,120 22,660 21,406 23,931
Acquisition

COSts ......... — — — —_ — — 5 I
Depreciation and

amortization ... 1,581 1,632 1,593 1,608 1,540 1,623 1,657 1,684
Operating

income........ 4,268 10,512 4,881 4,516 5,394 12,968 5,978 2,570
Other income

{expense):
Other income . ... 84 167 159 68 140 162 132 148
Interest expense . . . (3,250) (3,545) (3,413) (3,516) (4,090) (5,810) (5,874) (2,533)
Income before

income taxes . .. 1,102 7,134 1,625 1,068 1,444 7,320 236 185
Income tax'

expense ....... (360) (2,304) (529) (349) (543) (2,921) (127) {366)2
Net income

(loss) ......... $ 742 % 4830 $ 10968 719 § 901 $ 4399 § 109 § (181)

(1) Includes salaries, wages, commissions, and related benefits.

(2) Includes adjustments to state income tax expense for the impact of the state tax rate change on our deferred
tax balances and other miscellaneous items.

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from operations, borrowings under
the Company’s revolving credit facility established on June 30, 2005, and proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering. Funds are expended to provide working capital that enables the Company to maintain adequate
inventory levels to promptly fulfill customer needs and expand operations. At June 30, 2007, the Company’s
primary capital resources consisted of a $110.0 million revolving credit facility with outstanding borrowings
totaling $72.3 million and a $45.0 million first lien term loan with remaining obligations totaling $44.7 million.
The Company expects its capital resources to be sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for at least the next
twelve months, and it expects cash flows from operations 1o be sufficient to reduce outstanding borrowings under
the Company’s revolving credit agreement.

Operating activities. For the year ended June 30, 2007, net cash provided by operating activities was
$10.4 million, and was primarily attributable to $5.2 million in net income and $9.0 million of non-cash costs
offset by a change in deferred income taxes of $2.6 million and an increase in working capital of $1.1 million.
The non-cash costs included $6.6 miilion of depreciation and amortization and $2.2 million of debt issue cost
amortization. The debt issue cost amortization includes the write-off of $1.5 million of debt issue costs resulling
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from the pay off of the Second Lien Notes. The change in working capital included an increase in inventory of
$5.9 million and changes in income tax receivables/payables of $3.4 million, partially offset by an increase in
accounts payable of $8.2 millicn. The increase in inventory resulted from a rise in inventory purchases that drove
the corresponding increase in accounts payable. The change in income tax receivables/payables resulted from
estimated tax payments partially offset by income tax accruals. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, net cash
provided by operating activities was $12.9 million, and was primarily attributable to net income of $7.4 million
and non-cash costs of $7.3 million, consisting principally of depreciation and amortization. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005, net cash provided by operating activities was $8.6 miltion. Net income generated of

$7.3 million and $3.8 million of non-cash costs (depreciation and amortization) were offset by an increase in
working capital of $2.9 million. The change in working capital included increases in accounts receivable of
$13.5 million and inventory of $7.8 million, offset by increases in accounts payable of $9.8 million and accrued
liabilities of $9.7 million. The increase in accounts receivable resulted from an increase in sales during the last
two weeks of June 2005 that was driven by customers buying product in advance of July 2005 vendor initiated
price increases. The increase in accounts payable resulted from a rise in inventory purchases and the
improvement of payables terms with larger vendors. The increase in accrued liabilities was primarily the result of
accruals established for acquisition costs.

Investing activities. For the year ended June 30, 2007, net cash used for investing activities was
$24.7 million, and was primarily attributable to $21.9 million, net of cash acquired, for the acquisition of six
companies and purchases of property, plant and equipment of $3.6 million. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, net cash used for investing activities was $3.9 million, and was primarily attributable to purchases
of property, plant and equipment totaling $3.3 million. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, net cash used for
investing activities was $1.9 million. These funds were used to purchase $2.1 million of property, ptant and
equipment.

Financing activities. For the year ended June 30, 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was
$18.8 million. Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock pursuant to the initial public offering totating
$90.3 million combined with borrowings received from a new $45.0 million first lien term loan and a new
$45.0 million second lien term were partially offset by the payment in full of the outstanding $85.0 million
balance of the Second Lien Notes the payment of $54.5 million in dividends to common and preferred
stockholders, and the payment in full of the outstanding $26.5 million balance of the previous first lien term loan.
A change in overdraft balances totaling $4.8 million accounted for the remainder of the increase in net cash
provided by financing activities. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, net cash used for financing activities
was $13.6 million, and was primarily used to pay down the balances of the revolving credit facility and the
$30.0 million first lien term loan. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, net cash used for financing activities
was $6.3 million, and was primarily attributable to repayments on the revolving credit facility and other long-
term debt, as well as a change in overdraft balances.

Capital resources. In September 2006, the Company entered into a new $45.0 million first lien term loan
and with borrowings thereunder paid in full the outstanding balance on the Company’s then existing
$30.0 million first lien term foan and reduced borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility, The
$45.0 million first lien term loan bears interest at an annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.0% and maturss on
May 31, 201 1. Borrowings are collateralized by a first priority interest in and lien on all of the Company’s assets.

The outstanding borrowings under the Revolver bear interest, at the Company’s option, as follows: (1) an
interest rate per annum equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) the Prime Rate in effect on such day, and {ii) the
Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect for such day plus 2% and (b} the applicable margin or (2) an intercst rate
per anntum equal to the sum of (a) the product of (i) the LIBOR Rate in effect for such Interest Period and (ii) the
Statutory Reserves and (b) the applicable margin.

On January 30, 2007, the Form S-1 relating to the Company’s initial public offering of common stack was
declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission. As a result, the Company issued 9,100,000
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shares of common stock, which were subsequently sold to the public for $11.00 per share. In February 2007, the
Company received net proceeds of $90.3 million after deducting underwriting discounts and offering
commissions, fees, and expenses. As disclosed in the Company’s Form 5-1, the Company used the proceeds to
pay off the Second Lien Notes totaling $85.0 million with the remainder used for working capital and general
COrporate purposes.

During April 2007, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements at an interest rate of 4.95% on
$95.0 million of its debt in order to manage exposure to interest rate changes related to these borrowings. The
interest rate swaps effectively converted $95.0 million of debt from floating to fixed interest rates. At June 30,
2007, the fair market value of the interest rate swap agreements was $0.9 million. The Company does not engage
in financial transactions for speculative purposes and therefore holds no derivative instruments for trading
purposes.

Interest rates ranged from 6.88% to 13.60% as of June 30, 2006 and from 6.73% to 8.38% as of June 30,
2007. Additionally, the Company is required to pay a commitment fee on the daily unused amount of the
revolving credit facility at a per annum rate of 0.25%. The Credit Agreements contain certain affirmative and
negative covenants, which require, among other things, that the Company meet certain financial ratio covenants
and limit certain capital expenditures. The most restrictive covenant relates to the creation or assumption of
additional indebtedness. The Company was in compliance with ali covenants at June 30, 2006 and 2007,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2007, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than the operating lease
commitments in the contractual obligations table below.

Contractual obligations

Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2007 mature as follows:

Payments Due by Period

1 Year or More than
(in thousands) Total Less 2-3Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Line-of-credittobanks ............. ... .. ccovvuvi.. $72322 %8 — §$72322 § — $ —
Operating lease commitments ....................... 20,025 4,025 6,840 5,116 4,044
Long-term debt obligations (including current portion) . ... 46,564 1,363 2,001 43,200 —
Interest on long-term debt and line-of-credit(1) .......... 22,892 6,524 12,714 3,654 —
Total contractual obligations(2) ................co.... $161,803 $11,912 $93,877 $51,970 $4,044

(1) Future interest payments are calculated based on the assumptton that all debt is outstanding unti! maturity.
For debt instruments with variable interest rates, interest has been calcutated for all future periods using the
rates in effect as of June 30, 2007.

(2) There are some purchase obligations under purchase contracts, but management does not believe that they
are material.

Inflation

Most of our operating expenses are inflation-sensitive, with inflation generally producing increased costs of
operations. During the past three years, the most significant effects of inflation have been on freight and fuel
costs, employee wages and costs of products. Historically, we have been proactive in addressing inflation in
attempts to limit its effects through the enactment of cost control initiatives.
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Critical accounting policies

The SEC recently issued disclosure guidance for “critical accounting policies.” The SEC defines “critical
accounting policies” as those that require application of management’s most difficult, subjective or complex
Jjudgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain
and may change in subsequent periods.

Our significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to our conselidated financial statements. Not all
of these significant accounting policies require management to make difficult, subjective or complex jud.ments
or estimates. However, our management is required to make certain estimates and assumptions during the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. These estimates and assumptions impact the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates
and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the period they are
determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The following are descriptions of
some of our critical accounting policies that are impacted by such judgments, assumptions and estimates:

Revenue recognition. Revenues are recognized when title passes according to shipping terms. Provision for
sales returns is recorded at the time of sale for estimated products returned by customers. Provision for sales
discounts is recorded at the time of sale.

Manufacturer rebates. Inventory rebates are recognized when estimable and probable and include inventory
purchase rebates and sales-related rebates. Inventory purchase rebates received are capitalized into inventory
while sales-related rebates are recorded as a reduction of cost of products sold. Historically, actual results have
not significantly deviated from those determined using the estimates described above. We expect that our future
estimates will continue to be reasonable as our rebates are based upon specific vendor program goals and are
recorded each month based principally upon achievement of sales performance measures.

Goodwill and other intangible assets. At June 30, 2006 and 2007, the Company performed its annuat
impairment test, and no impairment was noted. The impairment test is performed by comparing the Company’s
estimated fair value to the carrying amount of its goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets. [f the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value, an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the
excess. The Company will continue to evaluate goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets consisting of
trademarks and trade names for potential impairment based upon any changes to the Company’s operations or its
operating business environment. Amortizing intangible assets including customer relationships and noncompete
agreements are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of twelve and eight years, respectively.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Company is exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions that are entered into in the normal
course of business. As part of our financial risk management program, we use certain derivative financial
instruments to manage these risks. The Company does not engage in financial transactions for speculative
purposes and therefore holds no derivative instruments for trading purposes. The Company’s exposure to market
risk for changes in interest rates relates to variable interest rates on borrowings under the Company’s credit
agreements. During April 2007, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements at an interest rate of
4.95% on $95.0 million of its debt in order to manage exposure to interest rate changes related to these
borrowings. This interest rate swaps effectively converted $95.0 million of debt from floating to fixed interest
rates. At June 30, 2007, the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was $0.9 million. At June 30}, 2007,
$22.0 million of the Company’s debt remained subject to market risk for changes in interest rates. If the wiighted
average interest rate on the Company’s remaining variable rate indebtedness rose 76 basis points (a 10.0%
change from the calculated weighted average interest rate as of June 30, 2007), assuming no change in the
Company's outstanding balance under its revolving credit facility and $45.0 million first lien term loan, the
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Company’s annualized income before taxes and cash flows from operating activities would decline by
approximately $0.2 million. If the weighted average interest rate on the Company’s remaining variable rate
indebtedness decreased 76 basis points (a 10.0% change from the calculated weighted average interest rate as of
June 30, 2007), assuming no change in the Company’s outstanding balance under its revolving credit facility and
$45.0 million first lien term loan, the Company’s annualized income before taxes and cash flows from operating
activities would increase by approximately $0.2 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements and related financial statement schedules required to be filed are
indexed on page F-1 and are incorporated herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the period covered
by this report, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule [3a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, we and our management
recognize that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and our management necessarily was required
to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing possible controls and procedures. Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer believe that as of the end of the period
covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
We will continue to review and document our disclosure controls and procedures, including our internal controls
and procedures for financial reporting, on an ongoing basis, and may from time to time make changes aimed at
enhancing their effectiveness and to ensure that our systems evolve with our business.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended
June 30, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Certain information required by this Item 10 relating to our directors and executive officers is incorporated
by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which
proxy statement will be fited with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that each of Messrs. Rosen, Biegler, Oelkers, and Steinhart qualifies
as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in Item 401¢h} of Regulation S-K, and that each of
Messrs. Biegler, Oelkers, and Steinhart are “independent™ as the term s used in Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schecule 14A
under the Exchange Act.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all employees, including our principal executive ofiicer,
principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
is provided on Exhibit 14.1 hereto. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is also available on our
website at www.aghii.com and we will send a paper copy to any stockholder who submits a request in writing to
our General Counsel.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Certain information required by this Item 11 relating to remuneration of directors and executive officers and
other transactions involving management is incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in
connection with our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not
later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

Certain information required by this ltem 12 relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management is incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2007 annual
meeting of stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close
of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, For information on securities authorized for issuance under equity
compensation plans, see the section entitled “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholders
Matters” in Part 1, Item 5 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence,

Certain information required by this Item 13 relating to certain relationships and related transactions is
incorporated by reference herein from our proxy statement in connection with our 2007 annual meeting of
stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of cur
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Certain information required by this Item 14 regarding principal accounting fees and services is set forth
under “Matters Concerning Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our proxy statement in
connection with our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which proxy statement will be filed with the SEC not
later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(1) Financial Statements: Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedule in the section entitled “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Part 11, Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule: Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule in the section entitled “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Part II, Item §
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Schedules not listed above are omitted because they are not required
or because the required information is given in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits: Exhibits are as set forth in the section entitled “Exhibit Index” which follows the section entitled
“Signatures” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibits which are incorporated herein by reference can
be inspected and copied at the public reference rooms maintained by the SEC in Washington, D.C.,
New York, New York, and Chicago, Hlinois. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information
on the public reference rooms. SEC filings are also available 1o the public from commercial document
retrieval services and at the Web site maintained by the SEC at hintp://www.sec.gov.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the iegistrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorized.

Animal Health International, Inc.

Date: September 18, 2007 /s/  WILLIAM F. LACEY

William F. Lacey
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that each individual whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints each of James C. Robison and William F. Lacey such person’s true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for such person and in such person’s
name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto each said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority
to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as
fully 1o all intents and purposes as such person might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all
that any said attorney-in-fact and agent, or any substitute or substitutes of any of them, may lawfully do or cause
to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature m Pa_te
/s JAMES C. ROBISON Chief Executive Officer, September 18, 2007
James C. Robison President and Chairman

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s! WiLLlaM F. Lacey Sr. Vice President and Chief September 18, 2007
William F. Lacey Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s/  MICHAEL EISENSON Director September 18, 2007

Michael Eisenson

/s/ MARK ROSEN Director September 18, 2007
Mark Rosen
/s/  BRANDON WHITE Director September 18, 2007
Brandon White
/s/  RONALD STEINHART Director September 18, 2007

Ronald Steinhart

/s/{ DavID BIEGLER Director September 18, 2007
David Biegler
/s/ ROBERT OELKERS Director September 18, 2007
Robert Oelkers
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Animal Health International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Animal Health International, Inc. and
subsidiaries (Successor) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operaticns,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and cash flows on June 30, 2005 (Successor
periods) and the consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of Walco Holdings,
Inc. (Predecessor) for the year ended June 30, 2005 (Predecessor period). These consolidated financial stztements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablz assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, or a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the aforementioned Successor consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all mnaterial
respects, the financial position of Animal Health International, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the Successor periods in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Further, in our opinion, the aforementioned Predecessor consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Walco
Holdings, Inc. for the Predecessor period, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principlss.

As discussed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, effective June 30, 2005, Animal Health
International, Inc. acquired all of the outstanding stock of Walco Holdings, Inc. in a business combination
accounted for as a purchase. As a result of the acquisition, the consolidated financial information for the periods
after acquisition is presented on a different cost basis than that for the periods before acquisition and, therefore, is
not comparable.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment” in fiscal year 2007.

/sf KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
September 18, 2007




ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Consolidated balance sheets
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(In thousands, excluding share information)

June 30, June 30,

2006 2007
Assets
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents . ........... ... ittt iiiineriannanerananes $ 303 $ 7751
Accounts recaivable, MEl ... . oo i e e e 70,178 73,958
Current portion of notes receivable .. .. ... L e 54 63
InCOmME taX FECEIVADIE . ... . e e e 232 1,285
Merchandise INVENIOTIES, MEL . . ..\ v ettt e it s e r s e e et e e e te e ae i naatiaennn 71,679 80,848
Defermed INCOME LaXES . . ...ttt e et e et e e e e e 3,063 4,127
Prepaid eXpenses . .. ... o e 1,520 2,159
TOtAl CUR O ASSELS . . o vt vttt i ae et e et ie ettt et e 149,762 170,191
Noncurrent assets: .
Notes receivable, netof current portion ... ... ... .. i EERETRT 684 401
Property, plant, and equipment, EE .. ... .. ... ...ttt it e 16,045 17,253
GoOdwWill L e e e e e 59,939 78,598
Customerrelationships .. ... . o o e 32,711 29,737
NONCOMPEIE SEIEEMIENES . . . . . ottt et et it it ettt e en e eiaa s eans 2,791 2,390
Trademarks and trade DAMES .. ... ... .ottt i e e 26,260 26,360
Debt issue costs and other assets, net of accumulated amortization of $807 and $830,
g T 6,145 5104
Tt BS8EES . . ottt t ettt et e e e e e e e e e $294,337 $330.034

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable .. ... .. ... e $ 65077 3 81,976
Accrued Habilities . . .. .. e e e © 18,100 15,644
Current portion of long-termdebt . .. ... .. ... . e 81,759 1,363

Total current Habilities ... oo oot rt it i e ettt e e e s 164,936 98,983

Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion . ... ... ... i i e e 55,875 117,523
Deferred lease INCENIIVES .ottt ittt ittt ettt et i it e 1,964 1,736
D erred INCOIE taXES . ... ittt it ettt e et e e e e 27,241 25,677

Total liabilities . . ..., . e e 250,016 243919

Commitments and contingencies (note 13)
Redeemable preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share. Authorized 3,500,000 and 0 shares,
respectively, and issued and outstanding 2,122,431 and 0 shares, respectively .................. 47,500 —_
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.0t per share. Authorized 0 and 10,000,000 shares, respectively, and
issued and outstanding 0 shares . ... ... oo i e — -

Common stock, par value $0.01 per share. Authorized 15,000,000 and 90,000,000 shares,
respectively, issued 2,259,991 and 24,329,670 shares, respectively, and outstanding 2,259,991

and 24,329,670 shares, respectively . ... ... . i e 23 243
Additional paid-in capital .. ... ... e e e e (9,405) 128,367
Accumulated earnings (deflcit) . . .. .. ... i e 6,446 (42,826)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10s8) . ... .. ... ... i i i it {243) 331

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) ... ... ... i i s 3,179 86,115
Total liabilities and stockholders® equity (deficit) ............ .. ... . ... it $294,337  $330,034

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Consolidated statements of operations
Years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007
{In thousands, except per share data)

All references to “Predecessor” refer to Walco Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries for all periods prior to the
June 30, 2005 acquisition of Walco Holdings, Inc., which operated under a different ownership and capital
structure.

Year emided June 30,
2005 2006 2007
(Predecessor) (Successor)
INEE SALES & v v vttt e e sttt me e e et et e e $535,693 $571,192  $ 529,534
Costs and expenses:
Direct cost of products sold (excludes depreciation and amortization) . ....... 436,955 459,173 507,997
Salaries, wages, commissions, and related benefits . ... 39,022 43,958 47,619
Selling, general, and administrative .. ......... . e 33,932 37470 40,498
ACQUISTHON COSIS .« .ottt iutsu e e ae e can e 7.759 — 6
Depreciation and amortization . ......... .. .o 3,149 6,414 6,504
Operating ifCOME . ...\ o ittt ia it ne e aaeas 14,876 24177 26,910
Other income {expense):
OUNEL INCOMMIE .« o oottt et e et ie e it te i ea e ia s aaananns 672 478 582
INLETESE EXPEISE . . v e o e vue i ihaenar e (5.071) (13,726) (18,307)
Income before iNCOmME TAXES . . ...t v it tr it e renaaianraaasnnens 10,477 10,929 9,185
INCOME LAX EXPENSE .+ o\t e e e e eattse s anana e e e et e s snrann (3.203) (3.542) (3,957
NELIICOIMIE « « ottt st e ta s nae e ettt s e aa e asanneanatnanas $ 7274 $ 7387 § 57228
Preferred stock dividend ......... ... .. i e — (941) (53,323)
Deemed dividend upon conversion of preferredstock ................ —_— — {95,227)
Preferred stock participation in undistributed earnings . ............... — (5,554) (4,062)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders ................. $ 7,274 $ 892 $(147,384)
Eamings (loss} per common share:
Basic
COTIMOM -« . o e vt e et ae e bt s i e et e om e nan et vnns $ 043 $ (130D
B O V1.3 - N U RO g § 338
(o - SO A $ 338
ClaSS W o ettt e e e e e e $ 338
Diluted
COMUITION .« vt et ettt et et ettt ‘ $ 043 3§ (130D
S5 A o e e et e e e i $ 282
L0l 7713 AP $ 282
ClASS W ottt et et e ittt e e e $ 2.8
Shares used in computing earnings per share:
Basic
COMIMION & - oo et ettt et as e taaonarassrarenannnstisasss 2,084 11,320
ClaS8 A ..ot i e e i as e ey 1,900
Class L ... i e e e ey 182
a5 W 1ttt e et e e e e e 72
Diluted
COMMON « « o et e et et e e maa e aa st sa e caaaeenanns 2,084 11,329 .
ClaS8 A ottt e e e e 2,307
(047273 D 197
CIaS5 W ottt e it e 72

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statemnents.
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Consolidated statements of cash flows
Years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 and on
June 30, 2005
{In thousands)

All references to “Predecessor” refer to Walco Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries for all periods prior to the
June 30, 2005 acquisition of Walco Holdings, Inc., which operated under a different ownership and capital
structure,

Year ended On June30 Year ended Year ended
2005 2005 2006 2007
{Predecessor) {Successor)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NEtINCOME ...\ttt ittt et s vt e e eansiinanans $ 7274 3 — $ 7387 3 5228

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ........... ... . 3,149 — 6,414 6,556
Amortization of debt issue costs .. ... ... o et 640 — 807 2,214
Stock Option @XPeNsSe .. ... ool s — — — 224
(Gain) loss onsale of equipment . ...........0 vt (292) — 36 (26)
Deferred income taxes . . ... . ...t e 693 — (3,649) {2,629
Deferred lease incentives ... ........iiiireireniaanan. — — 2,020 (52}
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable .. ... .. ... .. e (13,491) — 1,907 1,363
Merchandise INVENIOFIES . ... viirnriiannernanoannnn. (7,785) — (796} (5,935)
Income taxes receivable/payable . .............. ... ... (1,240) — 1,256 (3,353)
Prepaid expenses ....... ... oo 182 — (118; (509)
Accountspayable ........ ... . o ool 9813 — (9,733 8,171
Accrued liabilitiesand other .. ............ ... ..ol 9,662 — 7,335 (822)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ............ 8,605 — 12,866 10,430
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment ..................... (2.139) — (3,300) (3.567)
Purchase of Other assels ... ... inie i iinniniiineanneans (330) — (1,526) (395}
Acquisition of Predecessor, net of cash acquired ................. — {122,036) — —
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (includes $1,376 of direct
ACQUISIHON COSES) - . .ot — — — (21,936)
Purchase price adjustments ... .....ooivnrer i —_ — 536 742
Proceeds from sale of equipment ...............cccooiiiiiaan. 499 — 92 206
Net changes innotes receivable ......... ... ... ... ... ... 39 — 252 275
Net cash used for investing activities ................ (1,931) {122,036) (3,946) (24.675)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-termdebt ........... ... (563) (12,055) (3,794) (112,381)
Borrowings of long-termdebt ... ........ oot — 70,000 o 90,002
Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit facilides ...... (11,698) (49,284) (6,093} 1,188
Net borrowings under new revolving credit facility ............... — 77,228 — —
Debt ISSUE COSES « . o v vttt ta s iin e eanian et aa s (10N (3,827) (175) (630}
Change in overdraftbalances ................cooiiiiiiiiiinony 6,024 — (2,589) 4,833
Proceeds from the issuance of preferredstock ................... — 47,500 — —
Dividend on preferredstock .. ... — — 941) (53,323)
Dividendoncommonstock ....... . .. . i — — — (1,177)
Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock ................ — 57 26 90,269
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options ..................... 67 — — —
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities . ... 6,277 129,619 (13,566) 18,781
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ... ...... 104 — 99 179
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. .. 501 7,583 (4,547 4,715 R
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year . . ............... .. .. 4,630 — 7,583 3,036
Cash and cash equivalents, endofyear .. .............. ... ... $ 5,131 $ 7,583 $ 3,036 5§ 1751

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

(1) Organization

Animal Health International, Inc. (the Company or Successor), formerly known as Walco International
Holdings, Inc., was incorporated in June 2005 in Delaware. Through its wholly owned subsidiary, Walco
International, Inc., the Company's primary business activity is the sale and distribution of animal health products,
supplies, services and technology through operating divisions located throughout the United States and Canada.
On June 30, 2005, the Company acquired Walco Holdings, Inc. (Predecessor) (note 3),

(2) Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries,
and Predecessor. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized when the title passes according to shipping terms. Sales returns and allowances are
immaterial in all periods presented as most product returns from customers are returned to product manufacturers
for full credit. Any losses incurred on sales returns are recognized in the period the products are returned.
Provision for sales discounts is recorded at the time of sale,

For multiple arrangements in which a customer signs up for a multi-year exclusive supply agreement and
receives certain equipment and software products at no charge, revenue is recognized using the relative fair value
method under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force No. 00-21 (EITF
00-21), whereby each separate unit of accounting is recognized as revenue at its relative fair value, in which the
delivered item (certain equipment and software products) is limited to the non-contingent amount. Since all
consideration paid by the customer is contingent upon delivery of the product, no amount is recorded as
equipment and software revenue under these multiple element arrangements.

{c) Direct cost of products sold

Direct cost of products sold includes the cost of inventories, net of purchase rebates, and inbound and
outbound freight costs.

(d) Rebates

Inventory rebates are recognized when estimable and probable and include inventory purchase rebates and
sales-related rebates. Inventory purchase rebates received are capitalized into inventory while sales-related
rebates are recorded as a reduction of cost of sales.

(e) Shipping and handling

The Company and Predecessor invoice certain customers for shipping and handling. This revenue is
included in net sales and was approximately $814, $905, and $1,058 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and
2007, respectively. The costs associated with shipping and handling are reflected in direct cost of products sold
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

in the consolidated statements of operations and were approximately $8,481, $9,302, and $10,238 for the years
ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

{f) Rent expense

Minimum rental expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company
recognizes minimum rent starting when possession of the property is taken from the landlord. When a lezse
contains a predetermined fixed escalation of the minimum rent, the Company recognizes the related rent 2xpense
on a straight-line basis and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts.
payable under the lease as deferred lease incentives. Tenant allowances received are reflected in deferred lease
incentives and amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction to rent expense over the term of the lease.

(g} Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be :ash
equivalents. These amounts are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Book overdrafts totaling $11,728
and $16.561 at June 30, 2006 and 2007, respectively, are classified as accounts payable in the consolidated
balance sheets.

(h) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of receivables from trade customers. The Company records a
provision for doubtful accounts to allow for any amounts which may be unrecoverable. This allowance is based
upon an analysis of historical write-offs and is adjusted as necessary to reserve for specific accounts that are
judged to be potentially uncollectible. Specific accounts determined to be uncollectible are written-off against the
allowance.

(i) Merchandise inventories

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Inventories include the cost of
product, net of purchase rebates, and inbound freight, and primarily consist of finished goods stored in
warehouses.

(i) Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is determined for financial reporting
purposes primarily using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as
foltows (in years):

Buildings and improvements . ..... ... .. ot 10-40
Leasehold improvements ... .....oieereeere e nurnee oo, 5-10
Equipment:
WV ArEROLSE . . oot e et e e e e s 3-8
ALLOIIOUVE . ottt e e et ee e et et et e 3-8
Computer hardware and software ........... ..o oot 3-5
(0747 PP DR 3-8




ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
{Dollars in thousands}

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized, and maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred to operations. Depreciation expense was $2,797, $2,759, and $2,795 for the years ended June 30, 2005,
2006, and 2007, respectively. The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an assel may not be recoverable as prescribed
by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 144 (SFAS 144), Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. SFAS 144 requires that if the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows
from an asset is less than the carrying value of the asset, impairment must be recognized in the financial
statements by writing down the asset to its fair value.

(k) Goodwill and other intangible assets

At June 30, 2006 and 2007, the Company performed its annual impairment test, and no impairment was
noted. The impairment test is performed by comparing the Company’s estimated fair value to the carrying
amount of its goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value,
an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess. The Company will continue to
evaluate goodwill and other nonamortizing intangible assets consisting of trademarks and trade names for
potential impairment based upon any changes to the Company’s operations or its operating business
environment. Amortizing intangible assets including customer relationships and noncompete agreements are
being amortized over their estimated useful lives of twelve and eight years, respectively.

(1) Debt issue costs and other assets

Debt issue costs are capitalized and amortized to interest expense over the term of the underlying debt
utilizing the effective interest method. Other assets include equipment held for iease, which are amortized over
their useful lives, and investiments, which are recorded at cost.

(m) Stock options

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123(R)).
SFAS 123(R) replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation, as amended by SFAS 148,
Accounting for Stock-based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, and supersedes Accounting Principles
Board No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. The new statement requires companies to recognize
expense for stock-based compensation in the statement of income and was adopted by the Company on July 1,
2006.

Concurrent with the effective date of the initial public offering, the Company issued options to purchase an
aggregate of 749,300 shares under terms established by the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, which was
adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors and approved by stockholders in January 2007. An additional
9,500 options were issued in May 2007. All options issued during 2007 were incentive stock options. The
Company reserved 2,500,000 shares of its common stock for the issuance of awards under the 2007 Option and
Incentive Plan. The options vest over a four-year period, carry a ten-year term, and have an exercise price of
$11.00 per share for the initial 749,300 shares and $13.53 per share for the subsequent 9,500 shares. Options are
not performance based and vest with continued employment. Unexercised options may be forfeited in the event
of termination of employment. No options were vested or exercised as of June 30, 2007.

No stock options were issued by, nor were there any outstanding for the Company prior to January 2007, As
such, the Company adopted the fair-value-based method of accounting for SFAS 123(R) using the prospective
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

method. The Company uses the Black-Scholes formula to estimate the value of stock options granted to
employees and expects to continue to use this option valuation model. The Company includes a forfeiturz
estimate in the amount of compensation expense being recognized. The forfeiture estimate is based on historical
employee turnover rates. The estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense on a straight-line basis
over the four-year vesting period.

The following weighted average assumptions were used for the 2007 option grants: risk-free interest rate of
5.1%, dividend yield of 0%, annual volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’'s conunon
stock of 21.6%, estimated forfeiture rate of 8.4%, and an expected life of the options of 4.5 years. The risk-free
interest rate was determined based or a yield curve of U.S. Treasury rates ranging from one month to ten years
and a period commensurate with the expected life of the options granted. Expected volatility was established
based on historical volatility of the stock prices of other companies in industries similar to the Company. Based
on these assumptions, the 2007 options were valued at $2.87 per share. Total compensation expense for these
options totals $2,154 with $539 to be charged to compensation expense each year over the four-year vesting
period. For the year ended June 30, 2007, compensation expense related to these options totaled $224.

A summary of stock option activity is as follows:

Weighted average
Weighted average Weighted average fair remaining contractual Total intrinsic
Options exervise prices value at grant date term (years) _ value

Balance at July 1,2006 .... — 5 — $ —

Granted ................. 758,800 11.03 2.87

Exercised ............... — -— —

Forfeited . ............... 12,500 11.00 2.87

Balance at March 31,

2007 ... 746300 $ 11.03 $ 2.87 9.6 $ 2582
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

(n) Earnings per share

Earnings per share reflects application of the two class method. All classes of common stock in the
Predecessor periods participate pro rata in dividends and in the Successor period, the Preferred stock participates
pro rata in dividends with common stock. Therefore, the two class method of calculating eamings per share has
been applied as required by EITF 03-6. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the reporting period.
Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. For the calculation of diluted earnings per share,
the basic weighted average number of shares is increased by the dilutive effect of stock options determined using
the treasury stock method. The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

June 30

2005 2006 2007
Nt inCOmE . .. i e e $7274 $7387 $§ 5228
Dividend on preferred stock ... ... .. — (941)  (53,323)
Deemed dividend upon conversion of preferred stock ...................... — — (95,227)
Preferred stock participation in undistributed earnings .. .................... — (5,554) (4,062)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders ....................... $7.274 $§ 892 3$(147,384)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
) 11111 L) 1 U 2,084 11,329
Class A L L e e e 1,900
Class L oo e e 182
Class W L e e e e i 72
Dilutive effect of stock options and warrants
COMMION . .. i e e — —
Class A o e e e 407
Class L oo e e e 15
a8 W L e —
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding
0o 11111703 | 2,084 11,329
Class A Lo e e 2,307
Class L .. oo e e 197
Class WL e e e e e 72
Basic earnings per share
71113 T+ T $ 043 § (13.01)
Cla8S A L e $ 338
Class L o e e e § 338
Class W oL e $ 3.38
Diluted earnings per shar ‘ :
Common .......... P $ 043 $ (13.01)
Cla88 A Lt $ 2.82
Class L ... .. B 282
Class W ... i i i e PP $ 282



ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

In compliance with EITF D-42, the Company has reflected the excess of the fair value of the common stock
issued to the preferred stockholders to convert the preferred stock, over the carrying amount of the preferred
stock, as a deemed dividend upon conversion of preferred stock.

All common stock equivalents are excluded from diluted earnings per share in the year ended June 30, 2007,
as a result of the Company having a net loss available to common shareholders for that period. In that period, the
common stock equivalents are anti-dilutive.

(o) Foreign currency translation

The functional currency for the Company’s Canadian operations is the Canadian dollar. Assets and
liabilities for these operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date, and income
and expenses are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Translation gains or losses are
inciuded within stockholders” equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

(p) Fair value of financial instruments

Cash, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are reflected in the financial
statements at amounts which approximate fair value, primarily because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments. The Company determined, based on adjustable interest rates applicable to its long-term debt, that the
fair value approximates the carrying value of its obligations.

(q) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amcunts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates and assumptions are subject to inherent
uncertainties, which may result in actual results differing significantly from reported amounts.

(r) Concentration of credit risk

The Company provides credit in the normal course of business to customers based on their credlitworthiness
and generally requires no collateral from such customers. The Company maintains allowances for potential credit
losses.

(s) Impact of recently issued accounfing prenouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No, 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). FIN 48 requires companies to determine whether it is
more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authorities
before any part of the benefits can be recorded in the financial statements. This interpretation also provides
guidance on classification, accounting in interim periods, and expanded disclosure requirements. FIN 43 is
effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company is currently in the process ol assessing
the impact that FIN 48 may have on its future consolidated financial statements.
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (SFAS 157),
Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2009, The Company is
currently in the process of assessing the impact that SFAS 157 may have on its future consolidated financial
statements.

In September 20006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108
(SAB 10B), “Conusidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB
108 expresses the SEC Staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements.
SAB )8 addresses the diversity in practice in quantifying financial statement misstatements and the potential
under current practice for the build up of improper amounts on the balance sheet. SAB 108 is effective for the
Company’s current fiscal year. The Company recorded a pre-tax adjustment of $308 to reduce capitalized freight
during the fourth quarter of 2007 upon the adoption of SAB 108. This amount was not material to any prior
periods,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—an amendment of FASB Statement 115. The statement permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is 1o improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related
assets and liabilitics differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Most of the
provisions of this statement apply only to entities that elect the fair value option; however, the amendment to
FASB Statement 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, applies to all entities
with available-for-sale and trading securities. SFAS 159 will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal 2009, The Company is currently in the process of assessing the impact that SFAS 159 may have on its
future consolidated financial statements.

(3) Acquisitions

On June 30, 2005, Charlesbank Equity Fund VI, Limited Partnership (Charlesbank), in conjunction with the
existing management team, acquired all of the outstanding stock of Walco Holdings, Inc.

The Company paid more than the fair value of the underlying net assets as a result of the expectation of its
ability to earn a higher rate of return from the acquired business than would be expected if those net assets had to
be acquired or developed separately.

The excess of purchase price over the fair value of assels acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to
goodwill and will not be amortized. As a result of management’s ownership in Predecessor and Successor, and in
accordance with EITF 88-16, a portion of management’s ownership interest has been carried over at historical
cost and has resulted in a “deemed dividend” of $9,465, which is recorded in additional paid-in capital. During
the year ended June 30, 2006, $536 of reduced goodwill resulting from cost adjustments related to the acquisition
was recorded. During the year ended June 30, 2007, $742 of reduced goodwill resulting from the resolution of a
tax uncertainty from the acquisition was recorded. None of the goodwill is deductible for income tax purposes. In
connection with the acquisition, additional intangible assets were recorded based upon independent third party
appraisals including customer relationships, noncompete agreements, and trademarks and trade names. The
customer relationships are amortized on a straight-line basis over 12 years, which approximate their expected
useful lives. Noncompete agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over 8 years. Trademarks and trade
names are not amortized because they have indefinite useful lives,
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

In October 2006, the Company acquired certain assets of Farm City Animal Supply, Inc. and all of the
outstanding stock of Hawaii Mega-Cor., Inc. In November 2006, the Company acquired all of the outstaading
stock of Paul E. Blackmer, D.V.M., Inc. In January 2007, the Company acquired all of the outstanding s:ock of
Cattleman’s Supply, Inc. In March 2007, the Company acquired the business assets of Veterinarian’s Outlet of
Sunnyside, Inc. In April 2007, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Veterinarian’s Outlet
Incorporated. The Company paid $22,052 in cash for these six acquisitions (the Acquisitions) (plus
approximately $1,376 in direct acquisition costs) and issued $2,400 in notes payable to certain selling
stockholders.

The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the dates of the Acquisitions. These preliminary purchase price allocations will be adjusted upon the
completion of independent valuations, which are expected to be completed during the first quarter of fiszal 2008.

Cash and cash equivalents ......... ... .. i iiiiriir e $ 1,492
ACCOUNES receivable, MBL . ... .t i i e 5271
Merchandise INVENLOTIES, MEL . ... v\ttt e et ittt ettt e et te et ia et aanes 3,479
Prepaid €XPenses ... ... 141
Property, plant and equipment, NEE ..« ..o i i e 632
(16 e 1 1 | [ 19,401
Trademarks and trade NAMES . .. ..ot ittt e e c it ta e ea i e e s 100

Total assets aCqUITEd .. ... oot e 30,516
ACCOUNEs PaYADIE . . .o 3,848
Accrued Habilities . ... . e e e 798
Current portion of long-termdebt ... ... ... i 800
Long-term debt, net of current portion . ........... oo e 1,642

Total liabilities assumed . . .. ..ttt e e i 7,088

NEL SSELS ACQUITEA . . . o -« o et e e et e e ettt e e e e $23,428

Pro forma consolidated statements of income are not presented because the Acquisitions are not material
individually or in the aggregate to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

{(4) Accounts receivable, net

Jue 30
2006 2007
Trade aCCOUNLS TECEIVADIE . . .o\ttt ettt et e ae e e e $63,187 $66,939
Vendor teDate TeCeiVADIES . . . .ottt ettt et e e 7,729 7,602
Other receivables . ..ottt e e e e e e e 340 222
71,256 74,763
Less allowance for doubtful 2CC0UNLS . ... .t e e i i e {1,078) (805)
ACCOUNES Teceivable, Bt . . .ottt ittt et e $70,178 $73,958

Bad debt expense totaled $451, $776, and $(293), respectively, for the years ended June 30, 20035, 2006, and
2007. Bad debt write-offs, net of recoveries, totaled $641, $522, and $(20), respectively for the years ended
June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007.

Vendor rebates range from one-time purchase opportunities to sales-related programs that last a month, a
quarter, a trimester, or the entire calendar year. The receivable for annual sales-related rebate programs are
recognized as the established threshold is achieved.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

(5) Notes receivable

June 30
2006 2007
Note receivable from Sparhawk . ... ... ... .. e $607 %325
Other notes TeCeiVADIE . . ..ot i e e e 131 139
738 464
Less current portion of notesreceivable ... ... .. ... e (54) (63
NOLES FECEIVIDIE o ottt et e e e et e e e e e $684 $401

On March 4, 2004, the Predecessor entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the Agreement) with
Sparhawk Laboratories, Inc. (Sparhawk). In connection with the Agreement, the Company lent $1,000 to
Sparhawk in retumn for a note receivable (the Note), bearing interest at 13%, and warrants (the Warrants) to
acquire 333 shares of common stock in Sparhawk for $1 a share, representing potential ownership of Sparhawk
in the amount of 19.99% as of March 4, 2004, The Note and the Warrants are collectively referred to as
“Securities” pursuant to terms of the Agreement, The Note was issued at a discount, and the initial price of the
Note was $950 and the Warrants $50 at the time of closing of the Agreement. The Warrants are included in other
long-term assets in the accompanying balance sheet. As of June 30, 2006 and 2007, the Note had accrued interest
of $21 and $12, respectively.

Neither the Company nor Predecessor are required to provide any future funding to Sparhawk under the
terms of the Agreement or any other agreement, and the Company does not have the ability to significantly
influence the operations of Sparhawk.

Interest on the Note is repayable to the Company on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing with
the calendar quarter ended March 31, 2004. Principal payments are due on the fifth anniversary of the Note,
subject to prepayment events, as defined. Through June 30, 2007, Sparhawk has made principal payments
totaling $637.

(6) Property, plant, and equipment, net

June 30
2006 2007
Land .. e $ 3905 $ 3,897
Buildings and improvements . .. ... ... ... e et 5,227 5,168
Leasehold improvements . . . ... ... .. ... . i e 2,287 2,702
CoOnSIruction in PrOZIESS .. ...t a e e 369 1,275
Equipment:
Warehouse ... ... e 1,086 1,344
AU IV .ttt ittt e e e e 3,341 4,771
O e O WAL . o o e e 2,528 3,054
18,743 22,211
Less accumulated depreciation .. ... .. .. .. e (2,698) (4,958)
Property, plant, and equipment, net ... ... ... ... .. ... oL, $16,045 $17,253




ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs were $1,395, $1,575, and $1,744 and for the years ended June 30,
2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

(7) Goodwill and other intangible assets

Gross Net
carrying  Accumulated  carrying
amount amortization amount

June 30, 2006:
GoodWill .« .. e $59939 % — $ 59,939
Customer relationships . ......... ... .. i 35,685 (2.974) 32,711
NORCOMPELE AZTERMENLS . . . . oottt in e e e aaar e 3,192 (401 2,791
Trademarks and trade pames . . . ... ... .. it i s 26,260 — 26,260
$125076  $(3,375)  $121,701

June 30, 2007:
GoodWIll ..ot e e e et $ 78598 §$ — $ 78,598
Customer relationships ......... ... .o i 35,685 (5,948) 29,7137
Noncompete agreements ... ... .....uuverrrrennnneorsaonans 3,192 (802) 2,390
Trademarks and tradenames . . . ... ... ...t 26,360 — 26,360

$i43,835  $(6,750y $137,085

Amortization expense related to intangible assets totaled $3,375 and $3,375 for the years ended June 30,
2006 and 2007, respectively. The estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years is $3,375 per
year.

(8) Long-term debt

June 30
2006 2007

Credit agreement—Revolving credit facility ........ .. ... i $ 71,134 § 72,322
Credit agreement—Term Note ... ... .. it 26,500 —
Credit agreement—New Term Note .. ... ot — 44,663
Credit agreement—Second Lien Notes . . ... ... ... 40,000 —
(011 1Y) o — 1,901

137,634 118,886
LSS CUTENE POTTION . . ..ot v e v e ittt ettt i i aae s aa et aa e s tts (81,759 (1,363)

$ 55875 $117,523

Credit agreements

On June 30, 2005, the Company and a group of financial institutions entered into certain credit agreements
(the Credit Agreements), which included a $110,000 revolving credit facility (the Revolver), a $30,000 term
loan, and a $40,000 second lien loan.

The Revolver matures on June 30, 2010. Until June 2007, it was ctassified as a current liabilitv in
accordance with FASB Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 95-22 (EITF 95-22), Balance Sheet Classification
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
{Dollars in thousands)

of Borrowings Outstanding Under Revolving Credit Agreements That Include Both a Subjective Acceleration
Clause and a Lock-Box Arrangement. The Revolver was classified as a current liability in accordance with
EITF 95-22 since the Credit Agreements contained a subjective acceleration clause and contractual provisions
under lock-box arrangements that required the cash receipts of the Company to be used to repay amounts
outstanding under the Revolver. In June 2007, the Credit Agreements were amended to remove the requirement
that cash receipts be used to repay amounts cutstanding under the Revolver, and as such, the Revolver is
classified as a non-current liability at June 30, 2007.

In September 2006, the Company entered into a new $45,000 first lien term loan and with borrowings
thereunder paid in full the $26,500 balance of our then existing $30,000 first lien term loan and reduced
borrowings under our revolving credit facility. The $45,000 first lien term loan bears interest at an annual rate
equal to LIBOR plus 3.0% and matures on May 31, 2011. Borrowings are collateralized by a first priority interest
in and lien on all of the Company’s assets.

The outstanding borrowings under the Revolver bear interest, at the Company’s option, as follows: (1) an
interest rate per annum equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) the Prime Rate in effect on such day, and (ii) the
Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect for such day plus 2% and (b} the applicable margin or (2) an interest rate
per annum equal to the sum of (a) the product of (i) the LIBOR rate in effect for such Interest Period and (ii) the
Statutory Reserves and (b) the applicable margin.

In February 2007, as disclosed in the Company’s Form S-1, the Company used the proceeds from its initial
public offering to pay off the Second Lien Notes totaling $85,000 with the remainder used for working capital
and general corporate purposes.

The Company utilizes cash flow hedge accounting and uses derivative financial instruments to convert a
portion of its varjable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. The Company has hedge agreements, which are accounted for
under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity, as amended by SFAS
No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities—an Amendment of
FASB Statements No. 133.

On April 18, 2007, the Company entered into a $43,000 notional value swap transaction with a financial
institution effective April 18, 2007. The Company receives a floating rate based on LIBOR and pays a fixed rate
of 4.95%. The swap agreement terminates on June 28, 2010. The fair value of this swap was a net asset of $404
as of June 30, 2007.

On April 18, 2007, the Company entered into a $52,000 notional value swap transaction with a financial
institution effective April 18, 2007. The Company receives a floating rate based on LIBOR and pays a fixed rate
of 4.95%. The swap agreement terminates on May 7, 2010. The fair value of this swap was a net asset of $487 as
of June 30, 2007.

All swap agreement fair values are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as other assets. The fair
values of our interest rate swap agreements were estimated based on current settlement prices and quoted market
prices of comparablz contracts and represent their carrying values. The Company calculated $0 ineffectiveness
on both interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2007. An unrealized gain of $535, net of taxes of $356, is
recorded on the conselidated balance sheet as accumulated other comprehensive income.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

The market values of the interest rate swap agreements recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) may
be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations if certain terms in the Revolver or New Term Note
change, if the Revolver or New Term Note are extinguished, or if the interest rate swap agreements are
terminated prior to maturity. The net receipts or payments from the interest rate swap agreements are recorded in
interest expense.

Interest rates ranged from 6.88% to 13.60% as of June 30, 2006 and from 6.73% to 8.38% as of June 30,
2007. Additionally, the Company is required to pay a commitment fee on the daily unused amount o the
revolving credit facility at a per annum rate of 0.25%. The Credit Agreements contain certaia affirmative and
negalive covenants, which require, among other things, that the Company meet certain financial ratio covenants
and limit certain capital expenditures. The most restrictive covenant relates to the creation or assumption of
additional indebtedness. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants at June 30, 2006 and
2007.

The Credit Agreements restrict the amount of payments that may be made by the consolidated subsidiaries
of the Company to the Company. These restrictions limit the total amount of such payments to the total of
$55,000 as defined in the Credit Agreements.. At June 30, 2006, $42.483 or 79.3% of total net assets were
restricted. At June 30, 2007, $85,615 or 99.4% of total net assets were restricted.
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ANIMAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Notes to consolidated financial statements—{continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary financial data for Animal Health International, Inc. on a stand-alone basis as of June 30 of each
year is as follows:

2006 2007
Balance Sheet
Assets:
Investment in subSIdIANEs . . .. ...t e e $44.564 3 85,784
B L T $44.564 § 85,784
Preferred SIOCK ... . . e e $47.500 $
Stockholders’ equity:
OO SR L . Lottt e e e e e 23 243
Additional paid-in capital . ... ... ... e e (9.405) 128,367
Accumulated earnings (eficit) .. .. ... i it i e e e 6,446 (42.826)
Total stockholders” equity (deficity ...... ... .. ... ... ... (2,936) 85,784
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equily . ..... ... o it i e e $44.564 § 83,784
2006 2007
Statement of Operations
Expenses of parent . . ... . ... e $ — $ (8io)
Tax benefitof parent .. ... ... ... e — 326
Eamnings from subsitiaries . ... ... ... e e 7,387 5718
o (R e N $ 7387 § 5228
2006 2007
Statement of Cash Flows
Mt loss Ol DT .. . e e $ — $ {490
Net cash used for operating activities .. ... .. .. . it e it e — {490}
Investment in subsidianies . . .. ... . . e e e e (26) (89,779)
Net cash used for investing activities .. ... ... . . . it e (26) (89,779
Dividends received ... ..., .. e e e e e e e 941 54,500
Dividends paid ... ... e e e 941y  (54,500)
Net proceeds from issuance of commonstock ... i 26 90,269
Net cash provided by financing activities .. .. ... ... . i 26 90,269
Netchange incash ... . . . e $ — 5 -
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Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

Principal payments

Scheduled principal payments for all outstanding borrowings on June 30, 2007 (including outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Agreements) are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2008 .. e e $ 1,363
000 e e e 1,551
) (0 2O PN 72.772
0 1 43.200
1) 5 —
Thereafter . ... ..ot e e —

$118.886

For the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, the Company and Predecessor paid interest of §5,024,
$12,332, and $15,880, respectively.

(9) Preferred stock

As of June 30, 2007, the Company had one class of undesignated preferred stock authorized with no shares
issued or outstanding. The Board of Directors of the Company may designate and issue preferred stock in one or
more series. The Board of Directors can fix the rights, preferences and privileges of the shares of each scries and
any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions.

Prior to January 30, 2007, the Company had one class of preferred stock outstanding, which class was
converted into common stock in connection with the Company’s initial public offering. The remainder of
information presented in this note describes the rights and preferences of the class of preferred stock that was
outstanding prior to Yanuary 30, 2007.

Holders of Company redeemable preferred stock shall be entitled to receive dividends out of funds legally
available at such times and in such amounts as are declared on or to be received by holders of outstanding shares
of Company common stock, pro rata based on the number of shares of Company preferred stock anc/or Company
common stock held by each. The preferred stockholder participation rate in dividends is to be adjusied for any
common stock splits or common stock dividends. Dividends shall not be cumulative. Upon any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company, each holder of preferred stock shall be entitled to be paid in cash,
before distributions to holders of common stock, an amount equal to the sum of (1) $22.38 plus (2) an amount
equal to all declared but unpaid dividends on such shares of preferred stock plus (3) an amount necessary to
generate an 8% internal rate of return plus (4) a pro rata portion of the assets and funds of the Company available
for distribution to the Company’s stockholders after payment of items (1), (2), and (3) above. At any tine, the
Company may elect to redeem all or any portion of preferred stock. At any time on or after June 30,2011, the
holders of not less than a majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of preferred stock may elect to
have redeemed all or any portion of the originally issued and outstanding shares of preferred stock.

In September 2006, the Company paid an aggregate dividend of $53,323 to the holders of shares cf our
preferred stock and an aggregate dividend of $1,177 to the holders of shares of our common stock. A portion of
the dividend on the preferred stock reduced the aggregate liquidation amount that is due to holders of outstanding
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Notes to consolidated financial statements—(continued)
June 30, 2006 and 2007
{Dollars in thousands)

preferred stock upon the liquidation, dissclution, or winding up of the Company, or, at the election of at least a
majority of the shares of preferred stock, upon the closing of an extraordinary transaction, as defined.

On January 8, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a 1.63576-for-1 stock split of our common stock,
which became effective on January 12, 2007. All share data has been retroactively adjusted to refiect this reverse
split. The preferred stock participation rate was adjusted accordingly. On January 30, 2007, in connection with
the Company’s initial public offering, each share of the Company’s preferred stock converted into 6.11337 shares
of common stock.

(10) Related-party transactions

The Predecessor maintained an agreement with Bain Capital Partners V, L.P., an affiliate of the
Predecessor’s previous primary stockholders, for the provision of management and advisory services. The
agreement terminated concurrent with the acquisition of the Predecessor (note 3). Included in selling, general,
and administrative expense during the year ended June 30, 2005 is a management fee of $750 for the services
rendered pursuant to this agreement.

Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2005 included $1,766 related to debt payable to three affiliated
stockholders.

Effective June 30, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with Charlesbank Capital Partners, LL.C,
an affiliate of the Company’s current largest stockholder, for the provision of management and advisory services,
Upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering, the Company’s agreement for management and
advisory services with Charlesbank was terminated. Included in selling, general and administrative expense as a
management fee was $575, $664, and $146 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company has property lease agreements with certain employees. The Company incurred related rent
expense of $126, $102, and $268 during the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively. The total
future obligations outstanding at June 30, 2007, with respect to such leases are $880.

(11) Employee benefit plans

The Company has a defined contribution 401(k) savings plan (the Plan) that covers eligible employees.
Company contributions to this plan are made based on the Company’s attainment of certain earnings goals. The
Company may also make discretionary contributions to the Plan. Total Company and Predecessor contributions
to the Walco Plan were $647 for the year ended June 30, 2005, $214 for the year ended June 30, 2006, and $534
for the year ended June 30, 2007.

The Company’s Canadian subsidiary maintains a defined contribution profit-sharing plan for the benefit of

its emnployees. There were no contributions related to this plan during the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006 and
2007.
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(12) Income taxes

Income taxes have been provided as follows:

Year ended June 30.
2005 2006 2007
(Predecessor) (Successor)

Current income tax expense:
Federal tax EXPENSE . ... u.vuortoammtmiitr et rnaa st i $1,972 $5878 $4,963
State and Other taX @XPEOSE ... .. vvevrnnreertiirraaeerainas e 291 940 §22
FOreign tax @XPense . ... oveureeunvrnnnnueressiineesse s oassanns 759 429 110

3,022 7,247 5,895
Deferred income tax expense (benefity . ... ... ... ... 181 (3,705 (1,938
Total INCOME taK EXPENSE . . .o v vt e vt e as e nn et iias $3,203 $ 3,542 $3957

Deferred taxes consist of the following:
June 30
2006 ‘ 2007

Deferred tax assets:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE .« . ot o et ettt e e e ettt et a et esa i a e aananns $ 333 % 300
Accrued Habililies - ..ottt e e e 1,832 2,403
Merchandise INVENIOTIES . . . v\t e ettt e e e et saaaraasanases 606 672
Deferred 1856 INCEMLIVES .« o\ v\ et ottt e et s s eer e aets ot anaaen e 599 752
Total deferred LaX ASSELS . oo\ v vt v e r e ettt eaa e i e 3,370 4,127
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid @XPEMSES . - . .« v venet et et T (306) (226)
Property, plant, and equipment . . ... ... . {1,636} (550)
INtanIble ASSELS ...\ ottt e (25,606) (24,901)
Total deferred tax Habilities ... .. ...ttt i e it et it e (27,548) (25,677)
Net deferred tax assets (lHabilities) .. ... .. coot e e i e $(24,178) $(21,550)

Deferred tax assets are recognized, net of any necessary valuation allowance, for the estimated future tax
effects of deductible temporary differences and tax operating loss and credit carryforwards. As of June 0, 2006
and 2007, the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance as the Company believes it is more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets will be reatized.
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(Dollars in thousands)

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at statutory rates to the reported income tax expense from

continuing operations is as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2005 2006 2007
(Predecessor) (Successor)
Income tax expense computed at federal statutoryrate .. ................., $3,667 $3,825 $3,215
State taxes, netof federal benefit ........ ... . ... . . i i, 189 1 495
Permanentitems and other ... ... ... i e (653) (354) 247
Total IRCOME taxX EXPENSE . ... ...ttt i ittt enaannn, $3,203 $3.542 §3,957

For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2006, and 2007, the Company and Predecessor pald income taxes of

$3,834, $3,709, and $9,157, respectively.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company has not provided for U.S. federal income taxes on earnings of its
Canadian subsidiaries of approximately $1,900 as these earnings are considered permanently invested.

(13) Commitments and contingencies

The Company leases certain vehicles, computer equipment and facilities under noncancelable operating
ieases that expire in various years through 2017. Future minimum lease payments by year and in the aggregate,
under noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or more, consist of the following

at June 30, 2007:

Year ending June 30:
22 P

Operating
leases

$ 4,025
3,689
3,151
2,705
2,411
4,044

$20,025

Rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 was $3,894, $4,639, and $5,266,

respectively.

The Company is involved in various matters of litigation arising in the normal course of business. In July
2007, the Company paid $1,650 to settle a dispute with a former vendor. This amount was charged to selling,
general, and administrative costs and accrued for at June 30, 2007. In addition, the Company and Predecessor
have had an ongoing dispute with a competitor regarding a patent infringement matter. In 2006, the Company
established a $2,500 reserve for this dispute within accrued liabilities and charged the amount against seiling,
general, and administrative costs. Although the ultimate liability from this dispute and other existing or potential
claims cannot be ascertained, management does not anticipate that any related outcomes would have a materially

adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, operating results or cash flows.
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(14) Quarterly financial data (unaudited)
September 30, December 31, March31,  June 30,
2006 2006

2005 2005

Netsales .. ..ottt it et ci it $127,740 $156,763  $139,843 5146,846
Gross profit .. ... it 24,767 34,921 25,732 26,599
Income before inCoOmME taXxes . ... ..vrrceeeirinnannunn 1,102 7,134 1,625 1,068
NELIMCOME .« oo ottt ee et ittt iae e eineeearnanaens 3 742 $ 4830 % 1,096 &5 719
Net income available to common shareholders ........... $ 30 $ 635 % 58 5 119
Earnings per share:

BaSiC oottt e e e e e $ 005 $ 028 § 003 5 005

Diluted . .. ..oo i e e $ 005 $ 028 $ 003 %5 005
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BasiC ..ot 1,571 2,249 2,262 2,261

Diluted . ... e 1,571 2,249 2,262 2,261

September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30,
2006 2006 2007 2007

NetSales ... oootin it inair et eni e $145,702 $170,279  $153,874 3159,679
Gross Profit .. .. .vvuniiiin i e 27,054 37,251 29,046 28,186
Income before INCOME tAXES . ... oovt e rnirnneonanras 1,444 7,320 236 185
Netincome (I0S8) . ....voviiirrrreerereroaareonens $ 901 $ 4399 $§ 109 § (I8D)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders ...... $(52422) $ 652 $(95433) $ (181)
Earnings (loss) per share:

BaSiC vttt et $ (2322) $ 029 $ (5.7 $ (001

Diluted . . e $ (2322) $ 029 § (5.71) 5 (0.01)
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BasiC ..o ie e 2,258 2,258 16,727 24,330

Diluted . ... e 2,258 2,258 16,727 24,330
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Capital Corporation as documentation agent for the lenders
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Form of Indemnification Agreement between Animal Health International, Inc, and each of its
Directors and Executive Officers

Plan for Compensation of Non-Employee Directors
Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Program
List of Subsidiaries

Consent of KPMG LLP

Powers of Attorney (included on signature page hereto)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification, executed by James C. Robison, Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification, executed by William F. Lacey, Chief Financial Officer

Section 1350 Certifications, executed by James C. Robison, Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director, and William F. Lacey, Chief Financial Officer

(1) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 2 to our Registration Statement on Form §-1
(File No. 333-137656) filed on December 13, 2006.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 4 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-137656) filed on January 16, 2007.

(3) Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2007.




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, James C. Robison, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Animal Health International, Inc.,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in ail
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registran, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b} [Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transition instructions contained in SEC Release No. 34-47986];

(c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evatuation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ James C. Robison
James C. Robison
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

September 18, 2007




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, William F. Lacey, centify that;
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Animal Health International, Inc.:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
qur supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) {Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transition instructions contained in SEC Release No, 34-47984];

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this repoert our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materialiy affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the: registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisirant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report finaicial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting.

/s/ William F. Lacey
William F. Lacey
Chief Financial Officer

September 18, 2007




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Animal Health International, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending
June 30, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), we, James C. Robison, Chief
Executive Officer and President of the Company, and William F. Lacey, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13({a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

s/ James C. Robison

Name: James C. Robison

Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: September 18, 2007

/s William F. Lacey

Name: William F. Lacey

Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: September [8, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Animal Heqalth International

Excellence in Animal Health

Stockholder Information
Corporate Headquarters

7 Village Circle, Ste 200
Westlake, TX 76262
(817) 859-3000

Common Stock Listing

Common stock of Animal Health International, Inc. is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market |
under the symbol "AHII." |

Legal Counsel

Goodwin Procter LLP
Exchange Place

53 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP
301 Commerce St
Fort Worth, TX 76102

Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

Plaza Level

New York, NY 10038

Forward-Looking Statements and Projections

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to future
events or our future financial performance. We generally identify forward-looking statements by
terminology such as “may,” "will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” "could,” “intends,”
“target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue” or
the negative of these terms or other similar words. These statements are only predictions. We have
based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about
future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors. For a complete description of the risks associated with
our business and our industry, see the section entitled "Item 1.A—Risk Factors” in our most recent
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, you
should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We cannot assure
you that the events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or
occur, and actual resuits could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report relate only to events as of the
date on which the statements are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-icoking
statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Corporate Information

Executive Officers

James C. Robison
President and Chief Executive Officer

Kathy C. Hassenpflug
Vice President, Human Flesources

William F. Lacey

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Damian Olthoff
General Counsel and Secretary

Board of Directors

James C. Robison
Chairman of the Beard of Directors

Michael Eisenson
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Charlesbank Capital Partners, LLC

Mark Rosen

Managing Director of Charlesbank Capital Partners, LLC

Brandon White

Managing Director of Charlesbank Capital Partners, LLC

David Biegler
Chairman of Estrello Energy LP,

Ronald Steinhart

Farmer Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Commercial

Banking Group of Bank One Corp.

Robert Oelkers
Former Vice President and Comptroller of Texaco Inc.

Other Key Employees

Brian N. Bagnall ‘
Vice President, Information Systemns
Allen R, Carmichael

Group President, Beef

Larry Delozier
Group President, Swine/Poultry

Larry Spurtock

Director, Operations
Doug Harris

Group President, Dairy
Jon A, Kuehl

Group President, Dealer

Robert Mart, Ph.D.

Vice President, Marketing and Business Development
Mark Middleton

Group President, Veterinary

Henry H. Moomaw, Il

Vice President, Controller

Jeff R. Williams

Vice President, Sales

Animal Health International

Excellence in Apimal Health
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